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CHAIRMAN'’S REPORT
ERHBS

Introduction

This is my second Chairman’s report to the rugby
community on behalf of the Board of Directors (The Board)
and Senior Management Team and covers the key aspects
of Hong Kong, China Rugby (HKCR) activities during the
2023/24 year. | am happy to write that our community has
continued to recover strongly from the lingering impact of
the pandemic, and we saw a healthy domestic season at
all levels of the game. It was particularly pleasing for us to
be able to announce a sold-out Cathay/HSBC Hong Kong
Sevens for the first time since 2019, and | would like to pay
tribute to all the hard-working HKCR staff whose efforts
contributed to this achievement. This in turn has allowed us
to incrementally increase funding support for both our clubs
and community, as well as introduce a number of exciting
new initiatives, such as the employment of Women'’s Club
Coaching Officers (CCOs).

Strategic Plan

With the conclusion of the 2019-23 Strategic Plan, the Board
and Senior Management Team focused on developing a
new document that, in a constantly evolving sporting and
social landscape, would provide a clear short, medium and
long-term vision for HKCR. A framework was agreed that
was built on comprehensive data analysis and that also
encompassed stakeholder engagement, and the Plan was
publicly launched in April after the Sevens. We re-defined
our Purpose as “To optimise positive social impact for
Hong Kong through rugby”, and our Mission “To build a
connected, sustainable ecosystem of rugby”, which is built
on 3 "Pillars” of Community & Participation, Sustainability
and Representative Rugby, each supporting the others
in providing more participants to the community game,
additional funding and revenue generation and better
representative performance.

James and the Senior Management Team are now finalising
the approach to both the implementation and monitoring
of the Plan.
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Governance

The addition of electing our first three Independent Non-
Executive Directors to the Board has been a great success,
and Gill Meller, Brett Free and Josh Lewsey have all provided
significant contributions.

In our ongoing efforts to improve our competition structures
and enhance collaboration with our member clubs, we
have introduced Governance Boards in relation to the
Premiership, Community and Youth leagues with agreed
terms of reference. The implementation of these entities
has not been without its challenges, but we are confident
that this will provide a robust model for the domestic game
moving forward.

One significant project over the past nine months has
been the recruitment exercise to replace our former CEO,
Robbie McRobbie. Upon the announcement of his decision
to leave after a lengthy tenure with HKCR, we ensured
that there was sufficient time to engage with an external
recruitment agency in relation to a comprehensive search
that resulted in a strong set of diverse candidates, both local
and international, and we were able to announce James
Farndon as Robbie's successor prior to the Sevens. James
was then able to have a four-week in-person handover with
Robbie prior to his departure on 5 July. The whole process
was efficiently and professionally managed, and I'd like to
express my appreciation to both Odgers Berndtson and
Graham Barkus for their assistance throughout.

Finances

Finances are covered in more detail within the Finance
Director's report. The results represent a success, with the
sold-out Sevens playing a major part in this and helping
to solidify the recovery from the pandemic years. Careful
judgement is always required in balancing commercial
success with an increased investment into the game in Hong
Kong, and this was particularly the case at the start of the
year when some uncertainties around the Sevens were still
very much in place. Going forward, we expect this challenge
to continue given the anticipated change of venue for the
Sevens along with the desire to see the game thrive both
domestically and on the international stage.
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Kai Tak Sports Park (KTSP)

We have continued to liaise closely with the Kai Tak Sports
Park team over the past year as we look to ensure that we
are well positioned to take advantage of the impending
availability of this new facility.

This potential opportunity would not only be as the new
home of the Sevens, but also in terms of the way in which
HKCR can optimise the world-leading facilities available to
attract additional international events, and also maximise
the benefits associated with the facility for the good of our
domestic game. We foresee significant opportunities to
work closely with the operators of the Kai Tak Sports Park
in relation to the hosting of domestic events, as well as the
creation of an annual rugby calendar in Hong Kong - as we
look to strengthen our position as the rugby events hub of
Asia.

Greater Bay Area

An additional element of our approach to expanding both
the domestic competition and levels of participation is
fostering closer ties with the Guangdong Rugby Association
and Macau Rugby, helping them to develop the game across
the population of 70 million within the Greater Bay Area.
The Shenzen Pirates had an encouraging first season in our
leagues last year, and we hope they will be the first of many
teams as we build out the competition in the years ahead.
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Thank You

This has been another challenging year, and | would like to
record my thanks to the entire cross-section of the rugby
community who have offered their support and advice so
generously. Firstly, | would like to acknowledge Robbie
McRobbie, who dedicated 20 years of his career to the
development of rugby in Hong Kong and operated as a
highly competent and well-respected CEO since taking up
the role in 2017. On behalf of our entire organisation, | thank
Robbie and wish him all the very best in the future.

In particular, | would also like to thank:

e Our President, Peter Duncan and the HKCR Vice
Presidents

e My fellow Directors, Union Staff and Management Team

e All Club Chairmen, Officials, Coaches and Managers

e Allthe sponsors and patrons of HKCR

e All officials, including Referees, Assistant Referees,
Assessors and the various members of panels

e Dr David Owens, the Player Welfare and Medical staff,
and all our volunteers for their tireless support

e The many other Committees, groups and working
parties, that all work for the betterment of rugby in
Hong Kong and

® The supporters and fans of Hong Kong China Rugby

Finally, | would like to acknowledge a number of individuals
who collectively made great contributions to our game over
many decades but who have sadly passed over the past
year - Honorary Member Chris Howarth, long-time Sevens
ground announcer Ray Bruce, and Sevens Tournament
Director Rod Mason - Rest in Peace, and thank you all.
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CEO REPORT
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Having taken up the CEO role in June, this is my first annual
report and a good opportunity to take stock as we look
forward to an exciting next chapter in the HKCR story. We
find ourselves back in a position of relative financial stability
post-pandemic, but with some significant challenges and
opportunities, on and off the pitch.

Our Women'’s 15s team'’s impressive win over Kazakhstan in
the Asia Rugby Championship qualified them for the WXV
Division 3 competition later this year, which in turn gives them
a chance of qualifying for their second Rugby World Cup
in England next year. Meanwhile, World Rugby’s decision
to increase the number of teams in the Men's 2027 Rugby
World Cup to 24 has brought great excitement to the rugby
community in Hong Kong, as we eagerly await confirmation
of the new qualification format. As we target booking a
ticket to Australia in 2027, we continue our process of key
performance planning and decision-making to optimise the
squad's preparations for the challenges ahead.

We are also working hard with World Rugby and Kai Tak
Sports Park to agree on a vision for the Sevens for 2025
and beyond - a state-of-the-art stadium with an increased
capacity awaits us, as we look forward to the second year of
the re-imagined HSBC SVNS World Series.

Furthermore, following the announcement by the Organizing
Committee of the 15th National Games that Hong Kong
China will host the rugby sevens component of the event
in November 2025, HKCR has been asked to play a leading
role in the delivery of the Rugby Sevens Competition. Rod
Lai, who sits on the HKCR Board of Directors, has been
appointed to The PRC 15th National Games Rugby Sevens
Competition Sub-Committee. HKCR staff will join Rod in
supporting this project, and | know all involved will take
great pride in ensuring that the planning, preparation and
delivery of the competition are to the highest possible
standard.
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People & Culture

With the patient assistance of our HR consultant, Graham
Barkus, we have continued to review and improve our HR
framework and systems. Over the past year we have agreed
on a new performance appraisal process, enhanced our
induction programme for new joiners and updated the staff

handbook.

We have said farewell to two of our Senior Management
Team in Nathan Stewart and Michelle You, and also saw the
departure of my predecessor as CEO Robbie McRobbie.
These changes have afforded an opportunity to review our
organisational structure to ensure that we are aligned with
the new Strategic Plan moving forward.

I would like to recognise the contribution of all our Senior
Management Team for all their efforts over the past season:

David Greaves - Chief Financial Officer
Lucy Clarke - Chief of Medical Services
Rocky Chow - Chief Community Officer
Jo Hull - General Manager Performance

Bryan Rennie - General Manager Commercial & Business
Development

Aaron Stockdale - General Manager Events

The updates from these departments have been consolidated
broadly into the 3 “Pillar” reports of Community & Participation,
Commercial and Representative Rugby.

| would like to record my thanks to Crystal Wong our
Corporate Services Manager, who has continued to look
after the Board, managed our Sevens VIP Programme, and,
on a personal note, was invaluable in assisting with my move
to the city and transition into the CEO role. I'd also like to say
a big thank you to Robbie for his continued support, and
on behalf of all the HKCR Community wish him well with his
future endeavours.
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DIRECTOR OF FINANCE REPORT

MBEFHRS

I am delighted to present my report as Finance Director of
Hong Kong China Rugby (HKCR) for the year ending 30 April
2024. HKCR managed to deliver both on and off the pitch at
the sold-out 2024 Cathay/HSBC Hong Kong Sevens, which
has helped continue the recovery of the Company from the
lean COVID years when cancellations were enforced.

The event saw a significant increase in overseas visitors,
which is fantastic news for both HKCR and Hong Kong itself.
This increase in overseas visitors contributed significantly to
all tickets being sold for the tournament and provided some
lasting memories of the Hong Kong stadium for travelling
and local fans alike. HKCR is proud to be at the forefront
of demonstrating to the world what Hong Kong can offer
visitors and will be looking to use our expertise in delivering
world-class events to identify further opportunities to
showcase Hong Kong to the world.

The current year's hard work on the cost management side
and measures taken to drive attendance and revenues have
helped to stabilise the balance sheet and allow HKCR to
increase its investment in the local game with the return of
General Manager subventions for all Premiership Clubs. In
addition, going forward, there are planned increases to club
subventions, and the landmark introduction of Women'’s
Club Coaching Officers (CCOs) for the 2024/25 season.

Results on the pitch, notably the Men'’s 7s Asian Games gold
medal and the Women’s Asian Games 7s bronze medal
which took place during the financial year, served to help
secure Hong Kong Sports Institute funding for our athletes
at the elite end of the game. This support is critical for
ensuring our sevens teams remain professional and are able
to compete on the Asian and World stages.

2023/2024 Financial Performance

HKCRrecorded an operating profitbefore fairvalue movements
onfinancial assets and taxation of HK$26.4m (2023: HK$65.4m)
for the year ended 30 April 2024. There was a decrease in both
income and expenses compared to the prior year, which was
primarily due to the fact that only a single Hong Kong Sevens
tournament was delivered as opposed to two in the previous
year. The tournament’s profitability was enhanced compared
to the previous two editions, mainly as a result of being sold
out, and thus ticket sales were notably higher than for either
the 2023 or 2022 editions. The fact that HKCR was profitable
has allowed the process of rebuilding post-Covid to continue.

16 HKCR ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

The operating costs outside of the Sevens increased by
HK$15.2m to HK$106.7m, primarily as a result of the scaling
up of sponsored community programmes, investment in
personnel, particularly on the rugby side of the business, and
hosting other events and competitions outside of the Sevens.

In 2024 HKCR continued to rebuild our balance sheet. Net
assets for the year ended 30 April 2024 were HK$184.1m, an
increase of HK$31.7m compared to HK$152.4m as at 30 April
2023. This was primarily the result of the profits derived from
hosting the Sevens during the year, as well as an increase in the
value of the investment portfolio.

The full financial statements are set out on pages 100 to 137.

Looking Ahead

Despite the success of the current and prior year financially,
there remain a number of material uncertainties going
forward that necessitate a degree of caution for HKCR.

As reported last year, the challenge of the move to Kai Tak
Sports Park creates additional financial uncertainty. While
we believe the new fit-for-purpose stadium will deliver a
world-class event, the change of venue does bring a certain
number of unknowns, and it would be presumptive to
believe that the extra 10,000 seats at Kai Tak will be easily
filled. The commercial and marketing teams will have a key
focus on this going forward and will be looking for ways to
maximise returns from our primary source of income while
delivering the best event experience Hong Kong has to offer.
Ticket and hospitality sales at the 2025 Sevens will continue
to be a key determinant in the financial success of HKCR for
the foreseeable future.

At the time of writing, discussions are well underway with an
agreement with World Rugby to host the upcoming Hong
Kong Sevens tournament, and whilst these discussions are
always challenging, | remain confident that we will have
an agreeable outcome for HKCR, which will aim to remove
some of the future uncertainties that we are facing.

Discussions are also progressing on other secondary events
that could be run by HKCR with the aim of enhancing the
offerings available to both local and visiting spectators and
diversifying the revenue base of HKCR.
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Finally, | would like to acknowledge and thank all the staff at
HKCR and, particularly from my perspective, the executive
management and the finance team, for their diligence and
professionalism in returning the Union to a more stable position
and managing the diverse needs of stakeholders. | have every
confidence in their ability to manage the upcoming challenges
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| referred to earlier in my report and to lead the Union from
strength to strength.

As a final note, | would like to place on record my thanks to
Robbie McRobbie for helping lead the business through
exceptionally challenging times, and | wish his successor
James all the best in his new role.

Martin Murray

Director, Finance
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EERAI— LR .

tEoh, FHMIERT RBEERRBESRETEL R, BRAAMR
HBEREHESERESE, UWHEBENKARREBZSTN.

BERSTESSBRESLEET, SHIRTHERERUBEK,
HORASWEBRREINE, WEESSENENREFER, BOHE
NREREZER . FEFEOMPIEERNAARBRARSREIATH
g, 1BE MRS ARSTELR.

EREEE, BRIBEERGEIZSEW (Robbie McRobbie ) fEAREHEELHT
FFRRE BNEE TS, WM EAFELERE (James Farndon ) 7£
gz E—IER) .

BTFES
BXfE
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OUR 10-YEAR STRATEGY
RN +FERRE

An integrated strategy across our three strategic pillars focused on

optimising positive social impact for Hong Kong through rugby
ERRBEN=AZHE, EEBEBKES, HHASETBRELIEHERE

“To optimise positive social impact “To build a connected, sustainable

PURPOSE for Hong Kong through rugby” MISSION ecosystem of rugby in Hong Kong”
=8 [ BRERES, HOATBANSERT {8 [ EEBRT—ERERE. TRHEER
eRE | HORSERARE |

Collective initiatives

SERB(E

HKQ performance pathways
Iiemstems HEREFPEEE2EERER
recognition and HKCR
Incentivise recruitment community profile
of players to HKCR B R ES S Premiership KPIs alignment
accredited clubs HEEHERR RAERBIRITE | BIRMENIRIE |
XIFPEEBEREE BBk
EHHRERETIE
Men's 15s
Environment and Social EF15 ABIK
Alignment of Sevens BRERTE

and Touch across the

communi Governance
. ;o Women's 15s

MR AR RS ZF15 AR

- = TEERTE R B BRI =AY .
—zi Regional hubs

HoEARC

Technology Coach education and
R/ Referee pathway

support isRiE R BK

Data platform a4 SR
ﬁ}ngé? Ln&%giﬁ EE;‘I’ 1

Premiership

SOCIAL IMPACT AND SUSTAINABILITY
HETERUISTERRE
HKSI Sevens

Events Olympic pathway
EEEE 2Bt ABSE é%?%ﬁﬁizﬁﬂii’é

Sponsorship and Partnerships
SR SEBM
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Pillar 1: Community & Participation
XH1: HEMN2H

Optimise societal impact through enhanced
engagement, participation and retention

EBMEEE. EAZEREEIKE, UKRXRE
Bihruiexesd

Participation, engagement, and fan viewership of HKCR
population to increase by >10% annually from 2024/25 to
2028/29 season through a vibrant rugby community built
around Regional Hubs

LUt OaiEd, BURMENNEBRTE, BiEE2024/258=5)
2028/29%%F, RITEESBERESNSHE. BERNERBEK
KA, BETER10%MULE

Generate 15,000 registered participants participating in the
playing pathway and target equal gender focus recruitment
efforts to change the gender splitto 60:40 by 2027 across all ages
H5115,0002 15 KBS HIBIRES, EBEKEBETIENMEIFE
%, BRE2027F, BRMEHEHERNERILAIA60:40?

Rugby Sevens to be ranked in the top 3 team sports by
participation for both HKSSF and USF for boys and girls by 2027
2027%F, tABHRESVIFHEEERREEHENTEAEFELEEE
BERZAHSENE. LFHRESERE=Z

Rugby introduced to local school PE Curriculum by 2027 and
GBA clubs, local schools and universities integrated into domestic
club community

20276, BRESEEMATIREERE, EBRNERKE . i
BN KBNS 2

Pillar 3: Representative Rugby
X3 KREKEK

HKCR STRATEGICPLAN - hEF BB IKE S HE R KK

Pillar 2: Sustainability

XHEHE2: IHEER

Ensure HKCR can achieve its goals on a
sustainable basis
EUFEERMNERL, EREE

Generate a more diverse revenue base from 3 major sources:
a) The HK7s,

b) Hosting a second major annual event and

c) HKCR's digital platform

BR=AREZWNKR, BIEZSTHAN:
a) EFR/ELEBEFCABRE,

b) @ _EXRFREEER

c) BREHEBEL

Recognised as a leader in the sports industry across sustainability
- Environmental, Social and Governance

BEMDEETIRE. HEFERAREINTIHERER, REMAE
BERFEERENEEE

Create famous HKCR role models who inspire people to engage in Rugby

fTEPEKRE, (FAEBES, UERMARSEHEKES

Achieve 4-year Tier A categorisation at HKSI
Qualify for Men's and Women's Olympics in 2028 and 2032
Win Men’s and Women's Asian Games 2026 and 2030

Accelerated provision for Women's Representative and Premiership
to qualify for Women's RWC 2025 & 2029

Continued development of the Men’s 15s programme to ensure
competitiveness in relevant regional and global competitions

BRI ERRIIAER [ AR | FBIREEEIER

B TFHEE2028K%2032F RFEHS

)

5. XFBAE2026 R 2030F L EEER

RUEZERBERTFREBRESN AL FBREeE, LUIIEE2025
N2029F ST FIBE I RBAIS B LK

EEERSFIOABIKIER, HREMENBRLCES, RIFHT

FEEEEREE IS _SE_E_AFFERE 21



HKCRSTRATEGICPLAN - H EBEBKEGSERER

OUR INTEGRATED STRATEGY
PR BEERERKRE

A connected and sustainable ecosystem of rugby
—EEZEBRE. UHEERNEXRER

Hong Kong China Rugby ("HKCR's") strategy encompasses 3 pillars

(1. Community & Participation ("C&P"), 2. Sustainability and 3.
Representative Rugby ("RR")) which brings together our overall
mission for a "connected and sustainable ecosystem of rugby"

FEESBEKES (BE) KBREER=AZE., (1HEMBHE, 2.9
TEER, NIMARBEER, AEMOEs: Bv—@ [ EERE, o
TEERAIEIRERE | .

Each pillar supports the other in providing
more participants to the community game,
more funding and revenue generation and
better representative performance
=AXIEERXE, URAMEESEN2EE. BINE
BRI, RIBFARRBKELE.
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Connected and Sustainable ecosystem of rugby

EFHRERTFERRENERER

SUSTAINABILITY
AJFFHERRE

— — 4@ More funding from events to

Better representative C
support growth of community

performance = increased funding )

and sponsorships O e from A
- =y o events for the fiEs ™ R EEHRE

RRBKRIREE = IGINE R RIRFHEERD BEEANEZES

representative game

HEEEMESIETR, AR
BERRHESE

More players and larger social
impact = increased sponsorships

b= = and fan revenue
EZREREANMERE= EINEERE
EESTREIA

r @) Better representative
| performance = more HK
| role models inspiring
more players in the
| community
I REFERIEA-E2HE
REPRESENTATIVE | B BRESHEAES
RUGBY

R EBIER >

Broader player base resulting
in increased flow of players
for representative rugby

EAKEALE, (REESKES
FERER
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STRATEGIC EXECUTION FRAMEWORK
ok IR L 1T HE 2R

Executing our strategy and 10-year vision

@©

Objectives

BiE

>
e

Long term KPIs

>

RERSERISE

(KPIs)

Refer to subsequent
slides for short to
medium term KPIs
E2HEETRBRPE
HAKPIs

Pillar 1: Community & Participation

X1 HEFZE

Optimise societal impact through enhanced
engagement, participation and retention
EBMNEEE. RAZERBERS, MEXREEWK
HEE

Participation, engagement, and fan viewership of HKCR population to
increase by >10% annually from 2024/25 to 2028/29 season through
a vibrant rugby community built around Regional Hubs

DIERORIEE, By mms i0iEkitR, BiRE2024/25%F5)
2028/298Z, RATHEBHIETNSEE. BIHRANERBEHREA
%, SFBR10%MUE

Generate 15,000 registered participants participating in the playing
pathway and target equal gender focus recruitment efforts to change
the gender split to 60:40% by 2027 across all ages

1%5015,0002 kS 2 RNk ES, EERSESTFIOMNFES, B
£20274F, BRAEDEEREIEREH1760:402

Rugby Sevens to be ranked in the top 3 team sports by participation for
both HKSSF and USF for boys and girls by 2027

2027%, tAEHESVIITEEELREAHERTEEEAZEE RS
BREAHZENE . LFHREESEEE=F

Rugby introduced to local school PE Curriculum by 2027 and GBA
clubs, local schools and universities integrated into domestic club
community

20274, MHEHLEMAFMBEETRIE, HEHXNEERE . AHBR
RARBENAIKSILE

. .
Strategy

and Tactics

SREE N BT

Ref. 2% Initiatives {83%

Incentivise recruitment of players to HKCR
accredited clubs

S ESRKAE R RIS RET(F

C&P-1 #tER 2 -1

Alignment of Sevens and Touch across the
community

R ABRRRIFE R R AR R —EE

C&P-1 1t[ERZH-2

Regional hubs
HE AL

C&P-1 #tERZH-3

BEHTERREBRTFES

Pillar 2: Sustainability
HE2: AFERE

Ensure HKCR can achieve its goals on a sustainable basis
EUFEERMERL, EREE

Generate an increased annual surplus by 2034 from 3 major sources:
a)the HK7s,

b) hosting a second major annual event and

c) HKCR's digital platform

WE=XREBWARR, RAFESLR:
a) EIZFEELEEBEER-EAEKE,
b) SRBE_EARFEEI N

c) BREMIETS

Recognised as a leader in the sports industry across sustainability -
Environmental, Social and Governance

BEXDEDERE. HERENABBRENITFEERE, KTHREEHE
FREFERENESE

Ref. 2% Initiatives (8%

S EIEEE R Technology BHZ/#4

S-2 AIIEIEE-2 Data platform gi5Fa

S-3 TJiFEER-3 Events ZEE//ZH)

S-4 EIEESR-4 Sponsorship and Partnerships E8) K% &1EE ¢

S5 8] Governance ;512

FERER-5
S-6 AIIHEIEE-6 Environment and Social BiERitE

S-7 ASERE-7 Premiership support 3zi B4R

Capabilities we @ Social impact % Social impact Inspiring international
need to develop .’. narrative o.f% framework ’ t brand elevation
EERFHYEE O © HERELEES HEREIER B R RS AR
Technology to o _Ip “Fan first" digital app / AARN.  E-commerce _O HKCR website integration to
support data platforms anrs latform ‘ CRM and e-commerce
BENRATTIE [Lss) (FanFirst) UK 5 HETa | e SEESENMAEFNEZER
FEFaEest | BRTE TFRETa BIBBFAME
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' Current participants of 9,600 as of February 2024 #ZE2024%28, #59,600&828%
2 Current gender split of 70:30 as of February 2024 #Z=20245£2B8145tb51470: 30

Pillar 3: Representative Rugby
S2HE3: RS

Create famous HKCR role models who inspire people to engage in Rugby
ITEHEKRE, (FRAEBEE, USRS EBEKER

Achieve 4-year Tier A categorisation at HKS|
bt RRPAFH [ AR | BXEEIEE

Qualify for Men's and Women's Olympics in 2028 and 2032
B, XUFBKEN2028%2032FREEE

PURPOSE

— ]
=

Win Men’s and Women'’s Asian Games 2026 and 2030
. FHIE2026%2030F HERET

“To optimise positive social
impact for Hong Kong
through rugby”

Accelerated provision for Women's Representative and Premiership to qualify for Women's
RWC 2025 & 2029

R U FREFESR AL 7184 5, LANERTE2025K% 2029 F B & FHEEK

[ BRIEEES), NAEBR
Continued development of the Men's 15s programme to ensure competitiveness in BIEETETE |
relevant regional and global competitions

ERBFISAERIER, BREMER

Social impact

and sustainability
(annual review and
reporting)

HEHENATEE
TR (FEEE

%)

RR-1 Cs=pxHEEER-1 ‘

MISSION
E

RR-2 fEsRpxi8Ek-2

“To build a connected,
sustainable ecosystem of
rugby in Hong Kong”

[ A& BRI —EEEIEE
KHEZREAEERERE |

Men’s 15s 55715 A8k

Technical competency
ﬁ for newand existing v L » Coach and referee
v competitions - - developszt
BRI IR BRI =  HenEEsdl
______________________________________ I
|
f" CRM system _amem _ Database for Player |
O ) EEREZE - .: player, mediFaI performance |
¥ 2 (CRM) ®# - - and sport science measurement tool |
BHE . BERES KEXRTTHEIE
BT8R I

FTEEEEREE S _=SE_FE_WAFFERE 25
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ROAD MAP (24 MONTHS)
IBEIFEE (248 )

Strategic implementation in first 24 months

R 2R W £F B BE B it
| Season 2023/24 Ik= | Season 2024/25 k=
Feb-Apr 28-48 May - Jul 58-7H Aug-Oct 88-108 Nov-Jan 118-18B
Decision timeline:
RERBRIR
Key milestones Women's RWC -May /June 2024
and events Strategic plan Women's RWC Men's RWC ;'\;?%Efﬁ?f 72022355/6}? GBA tai D{:’Tr_tt |
o i) RittEz EERI RS en’s -June *EE sustainability plan
EREERRES Rt HFRRER FRIEER BFMIURE 2024565 and agreed KPIs
GBA strategy - Dec 2024 ERASERR EIR

s
KEESEEE- 20245128 Al

S-1 Technology al¥@EsERE-15l%

S-2 Data platform i @ERRE-2 BiFFE

pillar 2: _

Sustainability S-4 Sponsorship and Partnerships T ERE-4EMRE{E

| A
SeHE2: FISIERIR S-5 Governance AISERRE-5R12

S-6 Environment and Social A& E-6IRIERLE

S-7 Premiership support mAliHEEE-7BRHESL R

RR-1 International recognition and HKCR community profile {t&Eik—1ER2a R P EE BERESH ER

RR -2 HKSI Sevens Olympic pathway {CZEBEIR-2 Bkt MEIRER RIBE SIS

Pl 3 -

Representative

Rugby
v — -
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Season 2025/26 k=

Feb-Apr 28-48

May -Jul 58-78

Aug-Oct 88-108

Nov-Jan 118-18

Feb-Apr 28-48

K

Women's Rugby
World Cup 2025

LFIEREREFE2025

A

Implemented
sustainability plan
EEYTUSER
=5

A)

Sustainability report
2025/2026
2025/202(119?EEJ¥§?§§§

=]

S-3 Events A ERE-3ES

RR-7 Coach education and Referee pathway ftZExIEEk-7 SR

3

TEHEBEREE T ==

A
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CATHAY/HSBC HONG KONG SEVENS
EZR=/ESEFBERECABKE

Organising Committee

Chris Brooke (HKCR, Chair), Martin Murray (HKCR), Edward Bell
(Cathay), Esther Guevara (Cathay), Angel Wong (Cathay), Grace
Chan (HSBC), Adam Webb (HSBC), Robbie McRobbie (HKCR)
and Bryan Rennie (HKCR).

Event Summary

The 2024 Cathay/HSBC Hong Kong Sevens was the sixth
tournament in the freshly rebranded HSBC SVNS Series. The
event saw the top 12 teams in both the men’s and women’s
competitions compete on the main stage, as well as a newly
created side competition called the Melrose Claymores
tournament, which saw Hong Kong China, Japan and China
compete in the men's tournament, and Hong Kong China,
Thailand and China compete in the women’s tournament.
Hong Kong China men won the Melrose Claymore beating
Japan 22-12 in the Final, China women saw off the hosts 24-10
to secure their Claymore, and New Zealand picked up a double
in winning both the men's and women’s Cathay/HSBC Hong
Kong Sevens tournaments in emphatic style. New Zealand
men beat France 10-7, while New Zealand women comfortably
beat the USA 36-7.

The HK7s event sold out for the first time post-COVID and an
impressive 28% of the total audience were overseas visitors.
This included 40% of buyers through public ticket sales being
from overseas.

The event celebrated 30 years at the Hong Kong Stadium, and
the event tagline was aptly branded “The Greatest Hits” where
we took the opportunity to look back on some iconic and
unforgettable moments during our rich history at the venue.
This created a viral social media campaign that engaged with
past players, rugby legends, performers and fans alike. In total,
31 posts across 31 days reached a combined audience of over
9 million across 5 social media platforms.

An influx of rugby legends returned to the city to take on the
prestigious role as HK7s Ambassadors, including Waisale
Serevi, David Campese, DJ Forbes, Huriana Manuel, Christy
Cheng, Maggie Alphonsi, James Haskell, John Barclay, Jamie
Roberts, Benjamin Keyser and Heather Fisher.

30  HKCRANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

Mike Tindall, James Haskell and Alex Payne, from the award-
winning podcast: The Good The Bad and The Rugby, joined us
and recorded a first for the HK7s - an in-stadium live podcast
where they interviewed former players and rugby royalty.

James and Oliver Phelps, who played the Weasley twins in
the Harry Potter movies, were in attendance promoting Hong
Kong tourism. They were joined by former Liverpool Football
stars David James and Sami Hyypia, who were in Hong Kong
supporting Carlsberg following the successful launch of a
limited-edition HK Sevens beer can, created to pay tribute to
the iconic Hong Kong Stadium.

Sevens week was also back in full swing with over 30 events
returning to the calendar, including the Tradition HKFC 10s,
Kowloon RugbyFest, The Hong Kong Club Dinner, The Doddie
Weir Dinner, Austcham Cocktail Reception, The KPMG/
Britcham Dinner, The HKU Sandy Bay Dinner, The Valley Long
Lunch, The Carbine Club Long Lunch, The Christina Noble
Children’s Foundation Ladies Long Lunch, Sport Matters North
Asia and The Hong Kong Scottish Brunch.

Medical Symposium

Our medical team recruited, trained and managed over
100 volunteers to provide a world-class medical service for
participating teams and officials during the Cathay/HSBC
Hong Kong Sevens. We also relaunched The Hong Kong
International Sports and Emergency Medicine (HKISEM)
Conference, expanding into a two-day conference hosted at
Gleneagles Hospital Hong Kong.

The conference hosted 150 attendees over two days of
informative and interactive sessions and workshops on the
latest trends in cardiology, brain health, psychological support
and nutrition - and was expertly delivered by local and
international speakers.
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Sports and Sustainability Summit

HKCR, in association with Brand Hong Kong and Laureus Sport
For Good, delivered the inaugural Sport and Sustainability
Summit at The Fullerton Hotel. 150 guests were in attendance
to listen to industry experts and sporting icons, including Jamie
Farndale, Sir Steve Redgrave, Sean Fitzpatrick, Huriana Manuel
and Nolli Waterman. Topics discussed included how sport can
positively impact social change and the importance of creating
a sustainable circular economy relating to sports and events.

Entertainment

Friday evening saw Cantopop girl band Lolly Talk perform
as the opening act, followed by former America’s Got Talent
semi-finalist Celine Tam who got the crowd on their feet with
her memorable rendition of “Sweet Caroline”. An incredible
pyrotechnic display set the scene for former England rugby
star turned DJ, James Haskell, who was on the decks in front of
the South Stand who were all fired up for the self-proclaimed

11

“Archbishop of Banterbury's” playlist.

Saturday saw The Wailers perform a set of reggae standards,
which the enthusiastic crowd thoroughly enjoyed, and Sunday’s
crescendo saw Journey frontman Arnel Pineda delivering all
the classics, which the 40,000 packed-out stadium couldn't
help but sing along to.

Insights

World Rugby's wrap-up report saw HKCR receive an impressive
92% rating for the successful delivery of the event, whilst
Cimigo Market researchers, who conducted on-event fan
questionnaires and surveys, showed an event satisfaction score
of 96%, of which fans would highly recommend the event to
friends or family. The overall net promoter score received of
70 places the event in the exceptional range. Additionally,
90% of visitors believed that the Sevens enhanced their overall
satisfaction levels in Hong Kong. The average time spent in
the stadium was 7.6 hours per day, and around 30% of the
overseas visitors were first-time travellers to Hong Kong, with
the majority of them stating that the Sevens was a pull factor
to visit the city.

The event received extensive global media exposure, with
8,613 Social Media mentions, 7,832 Online News mentions
and 8,181 total News Clippings. Social media continued on
from 2023 as the second-highest performing media for overall
event media exposure.

Global broadcast statistics saw the total cumulative audience
grow from 884,000 in 2023 to an astounding 4,870,000 in
2024. The total viewing hours reached 3,330,000 - with South
Africa being the highest viewing market. The total media value
generated for the event was US $72,300,000, which was an
increase of 110% compared to 2023 (Note: broadcast and
media value statistics are provided by Nielson).

John Lee Ka-Chiu, Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR, attended
the event to hand out the trophies to the winning teams
alongside World Rugby delegates, including World Rugby
Vice Chairman John Jefferies and Chief Executive Officer Alan
Gilpin.

A huge thanks must go out to our corporate
partners, sponsors and supporters including:

Cathay, HSBC, Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau, Major
Sports Events Committee, Government culture, sports and
tourism programme, Hong Kong Jockey Club, Carlsberg,
Kukri, Coca-Cola, HKT, Hong Kong Tourism Board, Brand Hong
Kong, MTR, Cimigo and Laureus Sport For Good.

And a particular mention and heartfelt thanks
to the core Hong Kong Sevens delivery team:

Aaron Stockdale, Bryan Rennie, Lucy Clark, Michelle You,
Jordanne Grey, Adrian Lam, Andrew Brown, Newman Chang,
lwan Phillips, Matthew Rosslee, Jimmy Cheung, Michael
Shepherdson, Dylan White, Noel Cho, lvy Kwok, Kelvin Lo, Harry
Thorp, Jon Pallett, Yuen Sheung Cheng, Finn Cunningham, Bob
Brown, Candy Yiu, Lorna Meads. And a special mention goes to
Robbie McRobbie, who is stepping down as HKCR CEO.
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HEWE (X, FEESSEHRES). BXE(THSSERES). Bi5H
(EZ=). Esther Guevara (EiZ=). Angel Wong (EiZ=). Grace Chan
(EL). Z28#F (ER). &K (THESBBRES)REFC (FHEE

e .

ElZs/ELEBEEC ANBERE20242 [ BELESVNSHR T ABERRS
B NERBEE. 12X BFRI2EEFHRTERFAEEZHEEHK
5, MAEFMBRM [ MelroseiRgl#E | , SFHENBTEESE. HEAR
REIR2IN, LFERETEES. FERPEGRE. TEEEST
BRAERETL2212EHER, PREZFHREILI2AN0EHEFEE, WS
MelroseiRBIE . HFARTER S/ ESEBEIRC AEERE BRI,
WSS, LFHEENTSE., MAESFHRLUI0:7EKERE, HrumeF
BXRILA36: 788E S

SEEFBER CABREENSRBEERFSERIEE, BINGRE
BANBAERI28%, MAEER. B, 40%MI RERKEBINESR.

RERCBAESEEARISEREI0FE, HMGESORBER [ The
Greatest Hits(E@ATE) | , B SOIEIAIERKSHIEAELH
ZESHETIFZ . BRE. BF. REENFEKM—E2ET —ELEK
HATIREESEDIES) . FEEEEIIRA, FHMEH 7318063, B SE L
RIFFETFE, SFHENEI0 BER .

REZBIKIBEERES, BECEBREXE, HPERDIE. Htb
Hr. ®BlEBER. Huriana Manuel. 8%%&. Maggie Alphonsi. James
Haskell. John Barclay. Jamie Roberts. Benjamin Keyserk
Heather Fisher,

REEEFZEHE ( The Good The Bad and The Rugby ) BIMike
Tindall. James Haskell&Alex PaynellAEMHIT2, AtiEszs
BEESRISEE, EHETRFRKERBIKETE.

EEY (WBAREE) PanEErEEEatJames PhelpsKOliver
PhelpstBEIRI5=E, SEEBIRIE, i, sIAHRRRERE S
TRELEHRAEEAETHNE, ETERNELTRERSSEL
TBEESEE, REBABKIBEE .

[EECEE | rembsE, BB30EEHEREZHE, SESS
EEXZ10ABEKE. NEBKEFEE. FB83%E. Doddie Weirfk
2. Austcham#REE . EEEAEEEKGEE. FEAZ2VE
2. The ValleyR=RFE. CarbineIESEIRFE. The Christina
Noble Children's Foundation Ladies E£%FE. Sport Matters
North AsiaRk EBHISHMARFE
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BMNEEEREERE. BINSEESEET, £H=/ELTHEE
BEABRERBSSERMNEF ASREER —REERS. &
PIEEHRNE [ EBESEEHESESSMNE (HKISEM) |, £&8
Braset R R M A=

EEMXR, 1508EBEESNMTRNEEE. BEEFMNEERTIF,
RAN HRHEE S =B ORBE . RIERR. DEEREEE

BB .

TEESEKEASHEESRERSRITEEARTE, EEE
HEFLARBERNEEEEHITSEERSIEE . 150UEE L
FEREREBEBEREANER, HFB8HEJamie Farndale. Sir
Steve Redgrave. Sean Fitzpatrick. Huriana ManuelXNolli
Waterman., § LalmE N FESERENAEHEENEEETET
FE, UREEEREETAIEHFERRSENEEN,

KT EFESLolly TakiEBR LAKETEmEE, BEE [ £
—NT | giEEABIRFEIERIRIE ( Sweet Caroline) , BiRAIBERR=
BRREFRETIRE . EARBENRG, REISHEIEERBEE. RRIE
FERTRJames HaskeliT FEHE, thARmESNABERKE=LES
B ( Archbishop of Banterbury’ s) .

The WailersfEER"FE—RIIEFERME , BEHERAZIEE; Journey
SEXFFI|FAMel PinedaiElg T MG CIEEHEEH, ERBNSE,
SIBFEEERE, 40,0003 8RE0BEAHIREFIS .

HREHRETHRERSER, TEESERESEMIIENERME
BT HEMN2%:T7 . MCimigomiZiHR A SERIZETAIERKE S
AEEL, BEEREERIC%, KEFRrEORAUEEEELE.
ERFIERISDIER70, BIRIESAIKE, b, 90%RIBRAR,
FECERES T MMEEENEEREE . BREXEARBFOER
IER7.6/M\ K. 8930%89BMNEREERIEE, HPASHAET,
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CATHAY/HSBC HONG KONG SEVENS - EZF/[ELEEFEBHK L ABEKE

EZEfnzs . EL2IRT. XHWEERIRES. AEEEEHSHEEESE. BF ZR/EEA (Aaron Stockdale). ¥~ (Bryan Rennie). RE#

VEERETE]. HEEBE. =11A. Kukr. JO0T4, HFEEN. BRI (Lucy Clark). HE,. &%) (Jordanne Grey). #EBFE. A&

BES. EBRE. BE. Cimigo RS MEMES A m=:tEl, & (Andrew Brown). Epk#e. 35EE (Iwan Phillips). ZHifE
(Matthew Rosslee). &i&EFE. =P8 (Michael Shepherdson)
. 1HEE (Dylan White). ERB:E. e, EFSE. Harry
Thorp. Jon Pallett. EBimit. £2%5 (Finn Cunningham)
. Bob Brown. Candy Yiu. Lorna Meads. 453812 BNASEME
& BB R Z 1T BUE R AOZEN .
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DOMESTIC COMPETITION

AL &

Senior Rugby
Player Base and Community Leagues:

This season, we experienced a growth of 22% in our player
base, with a total registration of 2,994 players (2,091 men and
903 women). This figure is slightly ahead of the 2021/22 season.
Atotal of 52 teams (45 men's and 23 women's) participated in
the senior community leagues.

Men's Leagues

On the men's side, we agreed on a league framework during
the off-season, which allowed us to kick-start the three divisions
of Championship Leagues, along with two community
divisions for the next three seasons. This season, we welcomed
the inclusion of the Shenzhen Pirates, marking their first
appearance since the departure of the PLAteam. The Shenzhen
Pirates performed exceptionally well, winning both the League
and Grand Championship in the Championship 1 Division. We
are excited about the prospect of more engagement within the
Greater Bay Area in the coming seasons.

Women's Leagues

On the women's side, several championship teams had
premiership aspirations. A ranking round of 10 teams was played
before a split into Championship A and B for the second half
of the season. Congratulations to HKU Sandy Bay for winning
both the League and Grand Championship, and in doing so
earning promotion to to join the Premiership as a 7th team for the
coming season. The Women's Community Division played out as
12-a-side rugby, providing opportunities for clubs and teams to
recruit and rebuild for the upcoming seasons.

League Winners H&ETE

Men's Premiership
EFERHE

Women's Premiership

SEE S e —

Premiership A

A e T~ e

Grand Final Winners

Men's Premiership
BFERE
Women's Premiership
GBS

Premiership A

BEHEBA ————— " 5 i T T U DRt st S pe e s
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Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Hong Kong Premiership

The opening match of the Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Men'’s
Premiership Super Saturday saw a repeat of the 2022/23 Final,
in which HKFC Natixis Club defeated Societe Generale Valley
RFC. DAC Kowloon RFC and HKU Sandy Bay RFC also opened
up their seasons with wins over Kroll USRC Tigers RFC and
KPMG Hong Kong Scottish RFC respectively.

It was not until the very last day of the regular season that the
league winners were crowned, as HKFC Natixis Club lifted the
trophy thanks to a higher points difference than second places
HKU Sandy Bay RFC.

The Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Women's Premiership began
later this season as Hong Kong China's representative 15s team
prepared for a fixture in Dubai. Women'’s Super Saturday was
held on 17 February, and fans were treated to an incredible
174 points scored across the three matches.

Similar to the Men’s Premiership, HKFC Natixis Ice secured the
league title on the final day of the season. Two competitive
semi-finals were set up as Societe Generale Valley RFC, Kroll
USRC Tigers RFC and DAC Kowloon RFC all made the top 4.

Grand Finals Day opened with the men'’s Premiership A Final, as
HKFC Natixis Dragons beat DAC Kowloon RFC 26-23 in extra
time. In the women's Premiership Final Societe Generale RFC
retained the trophy as they defeated HKFC Natixis Ice 11-3ina
repeat of the 2023 final. Finally, KPMG Hong Kong Scottish RFC
were defeated in their second Premiership Final appearance
by HKFC Natixis Club, who ran out 15-6 winners.

HKFC Natixis Club

— = L A E . i e

HKFC Natixis Ice
Natixis&E & EEkElce
HKFC Natixis Dragons
Natixis &8 EEkE Dragons

HKFC Natixis Club

- = s e E e
Societe Generale Valley RFC

AR EIRE
HKFC Natixis Dragons
Natixis& & EEk&Dragons



Community Grand Championship
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The Community Grand Championship served as a fitting finale for the season. Teams from all eight men's and women's divisions
gathered at the home of rugby - King's Park Sports Ground - for a full day of fun and competitive rugby engagement for the community.

League Winners

BEBESERE

Grand Final Winners

FRERBECESE

HKCR Men's Championship League 1
HEESEHREEEFEEHE

HKCR Women's Championship League 1
HEE SRS U FEEHE

HKCR Women's Championship
HEESEHREE T T EHE

HKCR Men's Championship League 2
HEEBEHEE S FEEHE?

HKCR Women's Championship League 2
HEESEHREE Y FE a2

HKCR Men's Championship League 3
HEEBEREEE T T EHE

HKCR Community League 1
HEESERE S EHE

HKCR Community League 2A
HEEB BB ENE2A

HKCR Community League 2B
HEESBHEE T EIEB

HKCR Community League (12's)
FEIEBIEkE

SHIRHE(12')

Shenzhen Pirates RFC
R BBk RLEER

HKU Sandy Bay Typhoons Storm
BB AEEBEE Typhoons Storm

Societe Generale Valley Red
R TERIISEKERed

Kroll USRC Tigers Vandals
Kroll=E & ~E5kEVandals

Revolution Azure
FipiREEE S Azure

HKFC Natixis Sequins
Natixis &8 EEkE Sequins

Discovery Bay Pirates

HW=EENE%E

RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC 3B
RB-SRKFR/KERSHEIKE 3B

KPMG Hong Kong Scottish Claymores
5 EBEEE AMERE Claymores

DYNAMIC CARE Taipo Dragon RFC
Dynamic CareAl#Relgke

{22

HKCR Men's Championship League 1
HEEBEREEE T EEHE 1

HKCR Women's Championship League 1
HEEBERES T FEEHE 1

HKCR Men's Championship League 2
HEEBERESEFEEHE 2

HKCR Women's Championship League 2
HEEBERES T FEEHE 2

HKCR Men's Championship League 3
TEEBEHEEE T EENE 3

HKCR Community League 1
FEE SR ENE 1
HKCR Community League 2A
FEEBEESHREE 2A

HKCR Community League 2B
FEESERERENE 28

HKCR Community League (12's)
HEEBERESHREE (125)

Shenzhen Pirates RFC
RSB AL

HKU Sandy Bay Typhoons Storm
EBREEBEkZTyphoons Storm
HKFC Natixis Bulls
Natixis& & EEkZBulls

SCAA CWB x HKDS Griffins
R YERSX BRI
BIE Griffins

HKFC Natixis Sequins
Natixis& 8 EEkE Sequins

DAC Kowloon Beavers
DAC S BEfEEk4E&Beavers

RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC 3B
RB-SRKE/KEREHIEIRE 3B

KPMG Hong Kong Scottish Claymores
EEHESHIEHAEREClaymores

RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC
RB-SRKEKEREHIEIE
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Youth Leagues
Player Base and Age Grades:

In the 2023-24 season, we experienced a steady increase in the
overall player base, with a total of 1,556 players taking the field.

Boys' Age Grades:

During the first half of the season, our focus remained on the
XV games for the boys. To encourage better participation, the
community agreed to combine the U13 and U14 age grades
for one more season. However, there is a clear plan to resume a
clear split of these age grades for the 2024-25 season.

Girls' Age Grades:

On the girls' front, there was a fantastic effort of collaboration
within the community. Clubs joined forces to form competitive
teams, providing players with meaningful competition
opportunities while we continue to rebuild. Although the girls
played a modified format of 10s this season, they were able to
participate in several XV tournaments in January, allowing for
game development and preparation for the upcoming seasons.

We would like to extend our gratitude to Hysan Development for
their continued support in the development of youth rugby in
Hong Kong. Not only have they supported the Hysan Domestic
Season, but they have also expanded their support to include
girls in the year-end U14 Development Camp. Additionally, they
have established a key performance link through the Hysan Youth
Academy, further enhancing our rugby development initiatives.

Development Camps

Before the Christmas break, we organised a training camp for
U14s. Thanks to the continuous support of Hysan, we were
able to extend the camps this year for both boys and girls,
giving them the opportunity to participate in a comprehensive
training program that focused on contact skills and game
understanding. The aim was to prepare them for U16 rugby the
following year. Selected coaches provided valuable insights
and contact drills to the U14 groups, which were well received
by all participants.

Jockey Club All About Rugby - Rugby Magic

In its third and final year for girls, the programme integrated
domestic 15s league training, which was overseen by Kevin
West. The objective was to provide a solid foundation in the
concept of 15s rugby for U14-U18 girls. Starting from last
season, U12 girls were included, and this year, U9-U11 girls
also joined. This allowed us to provide early support for these
younger age groups, especially in terms of contact skills and
scrummaging techniques, promoting safety rugby across the
board.

Hysan Youth Rugby Competition
Rugby 7s continued in the second half of the season,

culminating in the highly-anticipated Premiership Finals. These
took place again at the Hong Kong Stadium as a curtain-raiser
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before the world series teams took to the field for the 2024
Cathay/HSBC Hong Kong Sevens. Players from all three age
grades had the opportunity to run out on the stadium turf one
last time before the event's anticipated move to Kai Tak Sports
Park in 2025.

New Year’s Day Tournament

The 56th New Year's Day Youth Rugby Tournament once
again showcased the best players between the ages of 15
and 18. One of the highlights was the Hong Kong Dragons
vs Overseas Lions matches for both U16 and U18 boys and
girls. Additionally, the boys U19s match served as a talent
identification opportunity for Hong Kong China's coaches
ahead of the World Rugby U20 Trophy in Scotland in July. The
team qualified for the tournament thanks to a victory in the Asia
Rugby Men’s U19s Championship in Hong Kong in December
2023.

We are grateful to over 28 local coaches and senior players,
including current and former representatives, who supported
the four teams in this annual tournament. Special thanks go to
Hysan Development, First Point USA and Hong Kong Football
Club for their continuous support of this important event.

Mini Rugby
Player Base and Age Grades:

The World Challenge Cup kicked off the 2023-24 season, with
over 350 U11 and U12 boys and girls taking the field at King's
Park, representing the 12 RWC nations.

Mini Festivals, Richard Hawkes Trophy and
Kim Lam Cup Competitions

All major festivals were back in full swing with Tigers, Sandy Bay,
Valley Fort and HKFC hosting the mini communities, with Flying
Kukris, Tai Po, Sha Tin and Aberdeen contributing additional
festivals. These collectively provided a comprehensive season
of engagement for the mini community.

Both the Richard Hawkes Trophy and Kim Lam Cup
competitions were back in January 2024, returning after the
pandemic to their traditional formats. It was great to continue
to witness resilience from the community, with both kids and
parents continuing to participate and support.

Mini Rugby @HK7s

A remarkable farewell took place at So Kon Po Stadium, as 1,500
mini rugby players, along with their parents, bid their goodbyes.
They took part in the Cathy/HSBC Hong Kong Sevens mini
showcase and participated in the march past for one last time.
The stadium was completely sold out, and it was truly remarkable
to witness the next generation of players - along with their
passionate parents and volunteers - who are key contributors to
the uniqueness of the Hong Kong tournament. We extend our
heartfelt thanks to George Vanberg for his exceptional efforts, with
2024 being his final showcase as coordinator.



Hysan Youth Rugby Championship - Girls
AR FESFBIRREEEERSE
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Hysan Youth Rugby Championship - Boys
AEBFESFEBRREEESESE

(MBERFRERETE)

League Winners

League Winners

HERE KEEs

Under 14 Hong Kong Football Club 1 Under 13 & 14 Hong Kong Football Club 1
14EAT EEEHEIK 13RM4BELAT BBEREIK

Under 16 HKU Sandy Bay Under 16 Hong Kong Football Club 1
16BRAT BEAZNE 165EAT BEBEREIK

Under 18 Flying Kukris / Sandy Bay / Valley Fort and Gai Wu Under 18 Valley Fort

185 LA T Flying Kukris/i>i&EER Fort RZEHRED 185U #F|Fort

Grand Final Winners

FEBEE

Under 14 Hong Kong Football Club 1
14T EBEHE 1K

Under 16 HKU Sandy Bay

165 T EERENE

Under 18 Stingers

185RIA T Stingers

Grand Final Winners

FEBEE

Under 13 & 14 Hong Kong Football Club 1
13RAABRLLT BEEHS 1K

Under 16 Kowloon Barbarians 1
165 fiAEBarbarians 18

Under 18 Hong Kong Football Club
18R T BTN

New Year’s Day Youth Rugby Tournament

TE BBV FIERER

Winners

EB%E

+ Middlesex Cup - Overseas Lions

« Middlesex Cup - f4MEmk

« Lassies Quaich - Hong Kong Dragons

« Lassies Quaich - &i5ael

+ George White Trophy - Hong Kong Dragons
« George White Trophy - &85k

« Naylor Cup - Overseas Lions
« Naylor Cup - ;89 Mifkx

Best and Fairest

S

+ U16 Girls - Aleena Azarova (OL)
« U164 F - Aleena Azarova (FB9METK)

+ U19 Boys - James Kee (OL)
« U1988F - James Kee (FB9MATEK)

« Jon Abel Award - Matthew McQuhae (HKD)
« Jon Abel Award - Matthew McQuhae (&85EkK)

+ U19 Girls - Emily Fisher (HKD)
« U19%F - Emily Fisher (Fi8EX)

+ U16 Boys - Matthew McQuhae (HKD)
« U1BEF - Matthew McQuhae (&F85E5K)

Kim Lam Cup - U12 Girls
MEBRSEIEEKE - LF 125U T

Richard Hawkes Trophy - U12 Boys
Richard Hawkest&Ek7s - BF12EMT

Cup Hong Kong Football Club 1
$RE EBEHEIK

Plate HKU Sandy Bay

i BRSNS

Bow! Tigers 2

R0 BRI

Cup Hong Kong Football Club 1
iRE EBERZIK

Plate Hong Kong Football Club 2
R BB EHE2K

Bowl Valley Fort

1R #fFort

Shield Sha Tin Sha Pei

HE DR

Richard Hawkes Trophy - U12 Boys.

FRESEESEEREE I _=SE_FE_NFFERE 39



COMMUNITY & PARTICIPATION - #t[ER 28

EAES, HMNKEREIERE22%, EMEKEREIER2,994 A
(2,0N BB FRENRIOSBLFIRE), BFIESN2021/228%F, £E
B23CBRIX (46328 FH M 23522 FIX) 20 T B AL = HHEE

TESFHELE, RMERSHREMEEERERI, EHMESTER
R=(EEZFRE=(EHRINEEHELMERBIRLREE . EAES,
BRI BERIIIIN, ERERNEFRMBEMMPIERINRE. &R
YiEEHEREE, BKRSESEMES—RIMELRSRERETE,
HMESRREEES, RMEEEBRNEREREAZHENBR,

AU FHEDH, A EBEHERGESEFIIRBRIEREK. 1032
BREXIET 7 —mIFEEE, ETHFERO NS EMBEARBRIEE, 5
EEBARVEEHSRKEREHERSFREATNTE, EMISE
REFER, MBHE CTBRHEREK . L LERIETI2AS
LB, RERERKBHARKSRBRENRERT(IF, REHESKE.

e KR | SEWITSFBREEER 27 8EE2022/23 F R EHH/H
1, Z2hSHNatixisE B RS ERZEERIBERE,; SDACTERBIKS
REBASVEBREEDFIEY Kroll =EFRRERENREEEESE
FISHABERE, SERE=BEHES.

Ry, EEEREFRE—H, DHELHT, NatixisEEBEKE
LB — B EBREVERRSIEDE, HiiBlEEa,

ERTEEELFISANBRAEGEREGFBLERTNES, X8
ZHREEE | SEWITZ FBHRMENRENEHRE. L FBHREM
R2BI17THET, —HBIBERESETREH740ER, BREAKRE
RtE.

ERSS FRBARE AL, NatixisHEE EIREIceEBEZRIE—RIHEME
BWE. MBERBEERETHA, ZREFBKE . Kol =EZERE
BRERDACH REEER S HEZ AT
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ZREREBL [ BFBEABEA | (URERK, NatixXisEBEKRE
DragonsfEANEsHAR, FrLI26-238MDACHEEIBIRE . fELFiBaRE
BRBNEELTAEENG, REFHEEFNERELI-3EK NatixisH
BEKENINEE ., BTEHRHEERNLE, ESREBRHFEHAZ R
BERE, ETHMNatixisHEBEERE, BELIS-6EERR.

HERFEQRELSAESE L TRENDR. RE2MM/ES. LFH
AN EREBHERZ R —RTIHESS, /EERBERT —EXRAIEE
BBNERRIEAEEER .

f£2023-24%Z, KERHBLBR, HE1,6068KE LIS,

FERHEES, SFHNEMNARISABERLE. REEEZ A2,
BEitERSSUISRUIAFRERIGHE—EEE. 7@, BMER
FIERBHESTEl, AS1E2024-25FFE PSS EmEFEHER .

FLZFHH, tENEHEERESBRNGE. XEZBBFEEZERFE
HBE, AFEEENERFPHAKEMEMESSNERS . MA
ABZFLFHERERIOANES, EREMHEHE—R ST HIF5
AFIRERIRE, RENSEIRAVBSMIFHLERIERNER.

BMRORHF HREEHEES O EERBEROSESTS . MMFEX
BHRESES, BE— LT FRESEFENTLEUI4EERF
®E, IS, tPIEEERESOFEREREY T HREIISER, &
—EIN3R T FHAPIRVBIREE RETE]

EERAt AR BT, BMIRUI4ERAR ST —RFlGE . BEFIERN




BB, BB FREFHREERFAZESENIIGSE, SFMMEE2
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BB BIEERIF R . PRI R U14ERIRIE T BENE R R =

&, EEREENEER,

AEtEIZHEKevin WestBABRIAU15 NMBEKEET IR, RFTEINE=4F.
BERE—FIET. BRFBU4ZEUI8LZ FIKEFT FREMN15AHIEERE
B, fE EEEFMHR, EEEREEVI2EZF, SERIBINUIEUNL
#ZF . EERHARERMEASELFRE/ AR RERIISIE, THEH
RN IR, SHEBER B,

TABBREETHESEEET, LAEZEENERHERESE, £HA
TABBRRIIBAIBKR LS [ BZs/ESEBRSCABERE | 251, 5415
BOERBRA T EBAKIGHERE . BE2020FEBEKZMIEEE
ERVERES, =(EF&ENNKSHICERE XSS ERIKSEIENES .

$£56E [ TEBLEHRRBEE | BARRE —RRHEM1562185%IK
8. U16RU18S. ZFET, BBEEREEBIMMAILLEERp A T E#EN
SR, U0 RSB FEHRENT7BERBHETZE, TEREEUI0SFE
BINB S M EFETEE SRR FIREESNKS . SFHIIR20235128
FEEBETNEMNUIBIKREENE, RS LAERSFEERENZNE
o

HMIEBREBR2UAMBGNR ERRE, BERERNERERMAES,
IR FEBEE DTS BN . TMFRIRGSIH REZE . First Point
USAREBERE —BURXIFERERES.

NEUEBR I R BERFE 72023-24FZ, BiB3508UTMRUIZRIS. &
FHREAFRI2BRERABSBEREY, SERTHESS.
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BB EBEGHECLAEDE, HIRREBKE. EERBEBEK
T, EFEKSFortREBRKEEH. B9, Flying Kukris.
K. DEANEBFOEN TEIRE, B BBREREURES S
S EE(EIRE

EHEEEERE, Richard HawkesiBERER K BRI SRR
202451 BLMBHFE B . ZFIREMIFESEN TIFIEE
RBETHENERSD.

Richard Hawkest&Ek#dE: VF1 (vs HKFC), HKU1, MKY,
SKS2, HKU2

WESRS&EEkTR: USRC (vs HKFC), DBP1, DBP2

1,500/ \EUBEK B R R I—RIERIRIRIEE B AIKISZ . MBFITE
EZ/ELEFEBEKRCABRESR, SHRTHRERNNEXES
RIBEREKE . EHSNEERR, HfMRETFEE—CRBKE.
MBENREFNZLF, tMERSEEBEECAERESSEISN
BEE—IE, HMPELORHIGeorge VanbergfdERIERSS I, b
2024 FREBE—IRETRS .

FEEEEREE T2 _NFFERE H
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PROMOTING THE GAME
i B B IKIE &

Tertiary Rugby

Tertiary rugby plays a crucial role in the development of local
rugby clubs and provides opportunities for young and new
players to engage in the sport. It serves as a platform for
participants to stay involved in rugby and offers an alternative
pathway to enter the game. Moving forward, we aim to foster
greater interaction between tertiary institutions and local rugby
clubs.

In the 2023-24 season, we witnessed a resurgence in player
participation in tertiary rugby, with over 400 players (265
males and 205 females) from 13 institutions registering for the
season. This marks an increase in player numbers compared to
the previous year, following the challenges posed by COVID.

HKCR organised atotal of fourrugbytournaments/competitions
for tertiary rugby during the season, which involved a total of
64 teams:

1. Tertiary Rugby Invitations Sevens Tournament 2023-24: 9
men's teams and 8 women's teams (including 2 tertiary
teams from China).

School Rugby

2. USFHK Rugby Sevens Competition 2023-2024: 11 men's
teams and 7 women's teams.

3. Tertiary Rugby Sevens Tournament (XRugby) 2024: 8
men's teams and 5 women's teams.

4. Tertiary Touch Championships 2024: 6 men's teams, 5
women's teams and 5 mixed teams.

Among these tournaments, the Tertiary Rugby Invitations
Sevens Tournament and the collaboration with the USFHK
Rugby Sevens Competition received the most attention from
institutions. The Tertiary Rugby Sevens Tournament (XRugby)
and Tertiary Touch Championships provided opportunities for
new players from institutions to compete and gain valuable
experience in playing rugby.

School rugby plays a vital role in the growth and foundation of the game. After three seasons impacted by COVID, both local and
international schools have used this season as a restart for the sport. International schools have transitioned to a 7s format, while local

schools have adopted XRugby for their secondary school competition.

School rugby is an indispensable component of the promotion and development of rugby in the community. After a full season of
transition, international schools have reintroduced some age grades in the 10s format, while local schools have gradually returned to

the traditional 7s rugby format.
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Hong Kong School Rugby Union

COMMUNITY & PARTICIPATION - #tE & 2

In the first full season back, the number of participants increased in all age grades, except for A Grade Girls, which experienced a drop
in numbers. However, significant efforts were made to build up Boys A, Girls B and Girls C grades in both the 7s and 10s formats this

season.

CGrade-U14

AE—14FEUAT

Boys: French International School
BF: FEHERER

Girls: West Island School

B Grade - U16
ZHE—16ERT

Boys: King George V School
BF: RECATIHER

Girls: South Island School

¥ AETE TF: mETE

A Grade -U19
EFAE—9EIUT

Boys: Kellett school
BF: HEFR

Game Format C Grade Boys - 7s

&l BPRAE - TAEH
C Grade Girls - 7s
YFHE - TAET

B Grade Boys - 10s
EFZE - 10AEH

B Grade Girls - 7/10s (depending on numbers)
P2 - TATI0NER (BAETE)

A Grade Boys - 10s

EFHE - 10AEH

Bill Williams 7s

Division Winners

HEEBE BF: MESR

Boys: Kellett school

Girls: IS, CDNIS, DC, YMCA Barbarians
YT HEERER. NEXERER. SHER.
YMCA Barbarians

A wrap-up tournament was held for Boys and Girls A Grades
at school, with 8 boys and 2 girls teams participating.
Congratulations to Kellett School and the Barbarians team for
winning the 2023 Bill Williams 7s for boys and girls.

With the support of the Hong Kong Jockey Club, the Jockey
Club Bill William International School 7s returned during
the Cathy Pacific/HSBC Hong Kong Sevens in November
2023. Eight boys and five girls teams participated, with
congratulations to West Island School for winning the 2023 Bill
Williams 7s for both boys and girls.

The alignment of the school and club game will continue to
be key to success going forward, as both organisations benefit
from a well-balanced playing schedule for youth to build the
playing base in the community.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank Scott Davidson
for his commitment and leadership during the past couple of
years. Scott will step down as Chairman and take on the role of
Treasurer of the School Rugby Union. We also welcome Gavin
Boak and Hong Kong China Rugby representative Jamie Hood
to the committee, who will assume the roles of Chairman and
Secretary, respectively.
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Rugby at Local Schools The Hong Kong Schools Sports Federation
- Recognises Rugby 7s as the sport for the federation. In the
second transitional season in 2023-24, A Grade Boys returned
to traditional 7s with a full pitch, while B and C grades continued
with X-Rugby.

Through the support of LCSD and the Hong Kong Jockey Club,
a total of 200 schools had rugby programs during the 2023
season. The union continues to focus on promoting rugby at
local schools for better engagement with the sport.

It was great to see the return of HKSSF competition after a full
season. A total of 83 teams, with over 800 secondary students,

Secondary Schools - With the support of the Jockey signed up for the HKSSF competitions.

Club All About Rugby - Rugby Spirit Project, we were able to
maintain engagement with secondary schools. For the 2023-
24 season, 80 schools and 54 school teams continued their
rugby programs.

HKSSF 7s Competition (Teams)
HEERESHI C AMEKRE (BKMA)

A Grade Boys: 20 B Grade Boys: 17 C Grade Boys: 27
BYHE: 20 Brod: 17 BYRE: 27
Senior Grade Girls: 10 Junior Grade Girls: 9

TFEFRE: 10 THRFRAE: 9

Congratulations to the following schools, winners within each of the age bands

All HK A Grade Boys : HK/KLN A Grade Boys : All HK C Grade Boys :
SBETHRE: BRMESTFRE: SBEFRE:
Rosaryhill Secondary School La Salle College La Salle College
RS WDELR HOER

All HK Senior Grade Girls: All HK Junior Grade Girls:

SBTFEERE: SBTFRERE:

YMCA of Hong Kong Christian College Heep Yunn School

BEEEER R
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Primary School Touch for the season. 65 of these schools took part in the HKSSF
competition in March 2024. Congratulations to St. Joseph's
Primary School and Queen Elizabeth School Old Students'
Association Primary School for being winners of the All-Hong
Kong competition.

The Jockey Club All About Rugby - Rugby Spirit Project
received overwhelming interest again in 2023-24, with over 80
schools selected through a ballot process to participate.

HSBC Primary School Touch Tournament -The
annual HSBC tournament returned, with over 750 students
from 28 primary schools taking part. Congratulations to the
following schools for their success in winning each category.

Touch Rugby is the recognised code for the Hong Kong School
Sports Federation (HKSSF), and it was fantastic to see over 100
primary schools in Hong Kong participating in touch rugby

Boys A - St. Joseph's Primary School Girls A - Yuen Long Po Kok Primary School

SYHRE-2EBNE TR - TIERNG

Boys B - St Andrew's Catholic Primary School Girls B - Queen Elizabeth School Old Students' Association Primary School
EFHE - REHEZEINE GFZE - FRIMAPEELE NS

Boys C - PLK Siu Hon Sum Primary School Girls C - Queen Elizabeth School Old Students' Association Primary School
S7RE - RRBREW)\2 AR - FRIMAPEELE NS

Overall Winning School: Overall Winning School:

BIEHERESR: REERESR:

Xianggang Putonghua Yanxishe Primary School of Science and Creativity Queen Elizabeth School Old Students' Association Primary School
BESET SRR/ NS PRI ERSEELEE/NS

District Active Rugby Engagement (DARE) Programme

Hysan District Primary School Touch Rugby Series - In an effort to improve retention and provide more competition
opportunities for primary school students, Hysan piloted three regions during the 2023-24 season. The region-based school rugby
engagement program held nine events in New Territories West, New Territories East and HK/KLN. These events saw the participation of
over 1,255 students from 36 primary schools - and a total of 53 teams taking part.
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AEBHREBERAMIRE . URASFEMFHRSRMESHIEZZ[ME
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ANHEH,

E2023-248F, HfIRET AERRIBKIKENSHEETREF . 2K
B13FBtRAg4002 B K8 (2658 BN 205Z X4 RE 2N T AES
HeEE ., EEREEHERBRER, BREAHR E—FEIEM.

EARES, TREEBEBRATHENT NEATRRBRE/LLE, £E
B43Z(R2N:

1. 2023-24FEAECANBERERGES: HETEFHMETLFHK(
BIE2 R B RE AR REARK) o

2. 2023-2024FEEHBARBEEHT — CABEKE: HANZEF

BN 73T F R

3. 2024FEARFE T ABEKE(XRugby): £E8XBFHROIXLTF
798

4. 2024FEAREIHBBIKE . HB6ZEFIK. S L FHREX
BER

Hrh, RECABREFEREEAEREHE - CABRERZRK
FE. RETABRE(XRugby) R REHETUBIKEL B RIS FR AR
SR P EAIME, EMrINEE SRS .

REEKEEEEREEREVERER L, HEEEAE. ELE
—EEFBREFENESE, NENEESRIEAESRREMIE
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teEE R 710 ABEREH .
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£ | EESEEEREEE — — [ | #0 | B35, HMELEsE
ERFRBRIFEIF. £2023-248Z, 80T N b4 A BRI /&
FEEIKIEE .

— RUCABKREESNEHER. &
2023-24FE _(EREESE, BFRAERRERINEEH7 ANBERET,
M AERRERAERF 0 N BERES .

EEERREHERISLEE L —ATEESTERERT, BEECAR
22, 5 83 XBfh. 800 SEHBLESNNTLLE.

2023-24FEN [ ERSBHEREE — — 18 | 0 | BEZE

[FHEEN | EEEEREBHERINNSEHIEE . HAILRE
B100Fr At/ NBE 2N T BRZERVREMBEEES), HPOopER2024
FI[2TEBEREEHENES ., REEES/NBERFEFIMEHE
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HONG KONG CHINA TOUCH

FEEEIFEABXKES

We are pleased to announce that the Hong Kong Touch
Association has undergone a name change to Hong Kong
China Touch for the 2023-24 season, aligning with the
rebranding of Hong Kong China Rugby. This represents an
exciting new chapter for our organisation.

Touch plays a vital role in the development of local and school
rugby. It not only offers an alternative option for participants
to stay involved in the game, but also provides an alternative
pathway to get into the game. In the 2023-24 season, we saw a
significant increase in player participation numbers, with over
1,800 adult players (1,058 males and 764 females) registered,
marking a 12% year-on-year increase.

Throughout the season, HKCT continued to organise various
domestic Touch Leagues, including the Summer and Winter
Touch Leagues, as well as the Youth Summer Touch Leagues.
Additionally, we successfully brought back the Hong Kong
International Touch Championship 2024, which took place a
week before the Hong Kong Sevens.

2024 was a particularly significant year for touch in Hong
Kong, as we took part in the Touch World Cup in Nottingham
in July. Hong Kong China sent over 100 members, including
players, coaches, referees and management, making it the
largest contingent to participate in a Touch World Cup since
pre-COVID times. As a pilot and in preparation for the July
event, Hong Kong China Touch organised four teams (Men’s
and Women's Open, Men's 30, and Women's 27) for a hugely
successful tour of Singapore.
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Executive Committee and Membership Club

The Executive Committee, led by Chairperson Diana Li, and
consisting of membership club representatives Alex Tsang and
Eric Li, as well as staff members Kai Hang Fung and Wai Ting
Ho, has shown continuous vision, passion, and support for the
growth of the game of Touch in Hong Kong.

In the 2023-24 season, we confirmed the registration of 13
touch clubs under Hong Kong China Touch. All membership
clubs have the opportunity to be nominated and voted into
the Executive Committee for the upcoming 2024-25 season,
taking over from the existing committee.

Summer and Winter Touch Leagues, Youth Summer Touch
Leagues

The Summer Touch Leagues, which ran from May to mid-August
2023, saw a total of 14 game days and 63 teams participating
across three divisions: Premiership, Championship Leagues
and Community Competitions. The results of the summer
league will contribute to the ongoing development of the
three-tier league structure, including a promotion-relegation
mechanism for the top two divisions.
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Results of the Summer Premiership and Championship Leagues (Season 2023-24)

EFERHERCSEHREER (2023-24F%)

Men's Premiership League
BFBEHE

Winner : Buccaneer

7BE: Buccaneer

1st Runner-up: Raven Touch Football
E3&: Raven Touch Football

2nd Runner-up: Neo Touch

ZE: Neo Touch

3rd Runner-up: Zion

SEME: Zion

5th: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch
SR%: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch
6th: T8

$15: T8

7th: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong
%+t%: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong
8th: Rebels

%/\&: Rebels

Grand Championship League
FEERE

Winner: Buccaneer

7BE: Buccaneer

1st Runner-up: Raven Touch Football
E3E: Raven Touch Football

2nd Runner-up: Neo Touch

Z&E: Neo Touch

3rd Runner-up: Zion

$ME: Zion

Women's Premiership League
UFBRHE

Winner: Buccaneer

7&: Buccaneer

1st Runner-up: Pillar Sports Phoenix
Touch

Ti&: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch
2nd Runner-up: Raven Touch Football
ZE: Raven Touch Football

3rd Runner-up: Neo Touch

$9Z: Neo Touch

5th: T8

$hE: T8

6th: Bomber

§7°%: Bomber

7th: Thunder

$+%: Thunder

8th: Zion

$I\&: Zion

Grand Championship League
FRERE

Winner: Raven Touch Football
7BE: Raven Touch Football
1st Runner-up: Buccaneer
I3E! Buccaneer

2nd Runner-up: Neo Touch
ZE: Neo Touch

3rd Runner-up:

Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch
$MA: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch

Men's Championship League
EFEEHE

Winner: Thunder
BE: Thunder
1st Runner-up: Yellow Bull

& Yellow Bull
2nd Runner-up: Bomber

ZE: Bomber

3rd Runner-up: HuHa

£M&: HuHa

5th: HK Scottish Unfolds
$HAZ: HK Scottish Unfolds

Grand Championship League
FHRERE

Winner: Thunder

@& Thunder

1st Runner-up: Bomber
E3E: Bomber

2nd Runner-up: Yellow Bull

FE: Yellow Bull
3rd Runner-up: HuHa

%M&: HuHa

Women's Championship League
YFEEE

Winner: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong
@& Galaxy Touch Hong Kong
1st Runner-up: Rebels

TE: Rebels

2nd Runner-up: Yellow Bull

ZE: Yellow Bull

Grand Championship League
FRERE

Winner: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong
7BE: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong
1st Runner-up: Rebels

IE: Rebels

2nd Runner-up: Yellow Bull

ZE: Yellow Bull

TREESEREE _E S E_E_NFEFERS
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Results of the Community Competitions (Season 2023-24)
tEEER (2023-24FF)

Men's Community Competition Mixed Community Competition (Div 1)
BFHEE RAHES (K5
Winner : The Wolfpack Winner: Ares
BE: The Wolfpack BE: Ares
1st Runner-up: Zion Development 1st Runner-up: Yellow Bull Asahi
gig: Zion Development & Yellow Bull Asahi
2nd Runner-up: THT Lion 2nd Runner-up: Neo Touch Beta
ZE: THT Lion ZE: Neo Touch Beta
3rd Runner-up: Unicorn 3rd Runner-up: Zion Development
£M%&: Unicorn 5M&: Zion Development
5th: Ares 5th: HK Scottish Wildcats
$FRE: Ares $%HE: HK Scottish Wildcats
6th: Sheesh 6th: Hoisumguo
$7%&: Sheesh 587&: Hoisumguo
7th: Drink or Home 7th: Thunder
5+t%&: Drink or Home 5t8: Thunder
8th: Sun of Grapes 8th: RAA Pacific
%)\&: Sun of Grapes #)\&: RAA Pacific
Other Participating Teams Efth 2 &M (H : Mixed Community Competition (Div 2)
Natura, Touch the Dolphins, Rhino Warriors BURGHENEE R
Winner : FASA
BE: FASA
1st Runner-up: Blue Dragon
Women's Community Competition Z5E: Blue Dragon
UFHESE 2nd Runner-up: Astro
Winner : R1532 =8 Astro
BE: R1532 3rd Runner-up: Tai Hang Tung Touch
1st Runner-up: HK Scottish Folds 3rd Runner-up: $M&: Tai Hang Tung Touch
ma&: HK Scottish Folds 5th: Yellow Bull JagerBomb
2nd Runner-up: Karasu 5th: £R%: Yellow Bull JagerBomb
ZFE! Karasu 6th: North District Sport Association
3rd Runner-up: Valley Aunties 6th: $75%&: North District Sport Association
$M&: Valley Aunties 7th: Touch the Dolphins
5th: Tai Po Dragon Ladies 7th: #t%&: Touch the Dolphins
gFh%: TaiPo Dragon Ladies 8th: Blue Tigers
6th: Lababy 8th: 8/\&: Tigers

$EA&: Lababy
Other Participating Teams Eft1 S & x(f :

Untouchables Masters, Jager, Jardine Sport Association, Untouchables, Try
Try, Rebels
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The Youth Summer Touch Leagues, held from June to August 2023, featured eight game days and 18 teams, with over 250 youth
players participating across three divisions: U16 Boys, U19 Boys and Girls. We recognise that youth touch rugby is important as a
platform for young players to develop their skills and introduce the sport to schools and parents.

Results of the Youth Summer Touch Leagues (Season 2023-24)

SLOFIHENEREZTHESR (2023-24 )

U16 Boy's League

U16EFHE

Winner : Blue Dragons

BE: BEel

1st Runner-up: Shatin Sha Pei

IE: PHERERE

2nd Runner-up: Concordia Lutheran School
FE: BRSHETS

3rd Runner-up:

TWGHSs Lui Yun Choy Memorial College
FNE: FESREHMCSHS

Grand Championship

TRERE

Winner : Blue Dragons

BE: el

1st Runner-up: Shatin Sha Pei

IE: PHERERE

2nd Runner-up: Concordia Lutheran School
ZE: RESHEPS

3rd Runner-up:

TWGHSs Lui Yun Choy Memorial College
FNE: FESREHMCSHE

U19 Boy's League

V9B FHiE

Winner : Raven Touch Football

7BE: Raven Touch Football

1st Runner-up: Rebels

IE: Rebels

2nd Runner-up: Concordia Lutheran School
FE: BESHEHS

3rd Runner-up: CSWCSS

$ME: RIVEXTHENFS

5th: Gai Wu Youth

$h8: BEREEOE

6th: Junior Ares

58738 Junior Ares

7th: SKHHCSS

$H8: EABEEDS

8th: TWGHs Lui Yun Choy Memorial College
FN\E: RE=REBMCIHER

Grand Championship

FRERE

Winner : Raven Touch Football

7BE: Raven Touch Football

1st Runner-up: Rebels

IE: Rebels

2nd Runner-up: CSWCSS

FE: RIVERTHHENPR

3rd Runner-up: Concordia Lutheran School

FNE: KESHRTES

U19 Girl's League

U19%FHE

Winner : Valley/T8

BE: Valley/T8

1st Runner-up: Concordia Lutheran School
DE: BRSRETS

2nd Runner-up: Raven Touch Football
ZE: Raven Touch Football

3rd Runner-up: Gai Wu Youth

£E: BHSKRESOE

5th: CDGFSS

$hE: WHREDHB

6th: Junior Ares

§73&: Junior Ares

Grand Championship

FRORE

Winner : Valley/T8

BE: Valley/T8

1st Runner-up: Raven Touch Football

TiE! Raven Touch Football

2nd Runner-up: Concordia Lutheran School
ZFE: BRSHBREVS

3rd Runner-up: Gai Wu Youth

FNE: HPEKEELE
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The Touch Winter League took place from October 2023 to February 2024 and featured a mixed category. This provided a different
format for the second half of the season, allowing clubs to engage their members throughout the year. The league saw a fantastic
response, with three levels of competition - Premiership, Championship and two divisions for the Community Leagues - and a total of
14 game days and 40 teams competing.

Results of the Touch Winter League 2023
JHEEIREFHF2023FR

Premiership League Championship League Community Competition (Div 1)
BiRmE UVI9EEHE HHEEEE (S5—4R5))
Winner: Buccaneer Winner: Rebels Winner: Neo Touch Beta
7@E: Buccaneer & Rebels 7@&: Neo Touch Beta
1st Runner-up: Neo Touch 1st Runner-up: Thunder 1st Runner-up: Chimera
3@ Neo Touch T8 Thunder EE: Chimera

2nd Runner-up: Zion 2nd Runner-up: Raven Il 2nd Runner-up: Astro
FE: Zion ZE: Ravenll F5: Astro

3rd Runner-up: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch 3rd Runner-up: Zion Development 3rd Runner-up: HuHa
£M4%: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch $M%: Zion Development $M&: HuHa

5th: T8 Orange 5th: T8 Black 5th: Ares

$#hH%Z: T8 Orange A T8 Black F£REZ: Ares

6th: Raven Touch Football 6th: Greenobo 6th: Padel+

%7°&: Raven Touch Football
7th: Pillar Sports Phoenix Griffins

%t48: Pillar Sports Phoenix Griffins
8th: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong

%)\&: Galaxy Touch Hong Kong

Grand Championship

FRERE

Winner: Neo Touch

7BE&: Neo Touch

1st Runner-up: Buccaneer

T3 Buccaneer

2nd Runner-up: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch
ZE: Pillar Sports Phoenix Touch

3rd Runner-up: Zion

5I&: Zion

g7\ Greenobo
7th: Jager

$£t%: Jager

Grand Championship Final
FEERE

Winner: Rebels

BE: Rebels

1st Runner-up: Thunder
EEE: Ravenll

2nd Runner-up: Raven Il

Z&: Thunder
3rd Runner-up: Zion Development

58M%: Zion Development

54  HKCR ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

$EAE: Padel+

7th: North District Sports Association
28t%: North District Sports Association
8th: Thunder Mixed

%/\&: Thunder Mixed

Community Competition (Div 1)
AR (S5—4R5))

Winner: HKScottish Folds

7d&: HK Scottish Folds

1st Runner-up: HKScottish Bombay
a8 HK Scottish Bombay

2nd Runner-up: CSD RUGBY

Z&: CSDRUGBY

3rd Runner-up: Tai Hang Tung Touch
58M4&: Tai Hang Tung Touch
5th: Neo Touch Alpha

$A%: Neo Touch Alpha

6th: HKScottish WILDCATS

2738: HK Scottish WILDCATS
7th: RAA Pacific

%+8: RAA Pacific

8th: Greenobo (Old Ghosts)
5/\&: Greenobo (Old Ghosts)

Other Participating Teams Efth 2 EEK(T :
Egrets International, Touch the Dolphins,
Galaxy Touch HK Silver, Blue Dragons,
Untouchables, Jardine Sports Association,
Rebels.B.Logan, Yellow Bull, Sun of Grapes



Touch Referee Development
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To support the leagues and competitions, Hong Kong China Touch has continued to conduct FIT Introductory Referee courses
throughout the year. This helps to grow the number of qualified touch referees in the community. Additionally, during the Hong Kong
International Touch Championship 2024, we invited a FIT referee coach to conduct the FIT Intermediate Referee Course. Fourteen
referees successfully completed the course and upgraded to become Intermediate Referees.

Furthermore, we plan to regularly run the FIT Intermediate Referee Course every year during the Hong Kong International Touch
Championship/Summer Touch League (Premiership League). This provides an opportunity for local referees to continue their growth
and become Intermediate Referees, as well as welcoming overseas referees to upgrade their referee level and contribute to making

Hong Kong a touch referee development hub in Asia.

BPRSEMEM, EBIFENBREEE2023-248FEES
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2, EREMERESES ARENFT—H.
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RUGBY FOR GOOD SUMMARY

MERREEHRS

About Us
Bl >4

OUR VISION
FFInIFES

A brighter future, where everyone has
a sporting chance at better health and

OUR MISSION
FeFIRvfEan

To empower young people with social
and emotional skills, and for them to

OUR ETHOS
HFIREES

Connect, Play, Glow

lifelong benefits that come from play- actualise their potential through the

based learning. power of sport and education.

BIZEEIFRIER, EMBEAHBEKIESR SREFERA BRI RMBERBEKRIS, Wk

DR ENEERL, RITRE, UK BB E TR B EIEE A ERE .

B,

2023/24 At A Glance

Rugby For Good celebrated our tenth anniversary this year Refining Our Approach

as we refreshed our brand and sharpened our approach to
ensure that we are well positioned to embrace the next decade
of our journey in bringing rugby to diverse communities in
Hong Kong.

A Name Change

To mark our commitment to supporting the diverse
communities in Hong Kong, we have refreshed the brand
of the Hong Kong Rugby Union Community Foundation to
make what we do more accessible for everyone. Looking
ahead, we have become known as Rugby For Good,
encapsulating the heart of our mission. Rugby has a unique
vaulted position in the cultural fabric of Hong Kong, and we
want to use this as a driving force for positive change. At the
same time, we have launched a new logo with two rugby
balls meeting to form a heart. We hope this conveys the
message that we are using sport to reach out to the hearts
and minds of the people around us.
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The joy of rugby can be shared by everyone. At Rugby For
Good, we want to harness the power of the game to build a
more inclusive community and use it as a platform for positive
change - bringing together people from all different walks of
life and uniting them and making Hong Kong a better place
for all. We have consolidated all of our play-based learning
programmes around two primary areas of focus: Well-being
& Social Inclusion. The organisation supports a variety of
initiatives to empower young people, women and the wider
community, helping them achieve their potential through the
power of sport and education. In short, our approach is built
around clear principles:

i) Utilising rugby-inspired play-based learning;
ii) Ensuring that all programming is intentionally designed to
promote Well-being or Social Inclusion;

iii) Leveraging measurable and data-driven processes to drive
transformational change.

A DRIVING FORCE FOR GOOD.



ESG

Environment

We are working towards increasing our environmental
sustainability and are taking key steps towards hosting
“green” community events and tournaments, with an
emphasis on eliminating plastic waste through the reduction
of single use plastic (including water bottles) and moving
towards sustainable, recycled and environmentally friendly
trophies and souvenirs.

Some of the environmentally friendly initiatives that we have
already started to implement are as follows:

e Collection and re-use of rugby kit through the Redbox
collection container at King's Park
e The re-use and re-distribution of unbranded rugby balls

¢ Increase the use of trophies and medals made from
environmentally friendly materials

Social

Sports and Sports for Development promote inclusivity,
diversity, and equality by providing opportunities for
individuals from different backgrounds, regardless of their
gender, age, race, or socioeconomic status.

These initiatives also contribute to community development
by fostering social cohesion, promoting teamwork and
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enhancing interpersonal skills. Moreover, they can serve as a
platform to address and raise awareness about social issues
such as discrimination, violence and inequality.

For our Rugby For Good we will:

e Continue to promote and celebrate the diversity of our
team

e Offer training workshops and professional development
opportunities

e Organise social events

Governance

We undertake to uphold the highest principles of
transparency, accountability and fair play, ensuring that rules
and regulations are followed.

We will encourage ethical behavior, discourage corruption
and promote good governance; by setting an example of
responsible governance, we hope to inspire other sectors to
adopt similar practices and contribute to a more ethical and
well-governed society.

Our Impact

FefPIat

&N

Districts
1 8 EibE

Active Projects
16 EiERIER

225 Schools in Partnership
E2EBHKR

Beneficiaries
32'435 VZBRAL
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REPRESENTATIVE RUGBY
X = B 18 Bk

The Hong Kong China Men’s XVs team hosted a two-test
series against Germany in Hong Kong in November 2023,
of which they won both games and had the opportunity
to cap several new players as they work towards a new
four-year cycle, with the aim to future-proof the team to
2031. The team then had a very successful training camp
in Canberra and played a competitive game against the
Brumbies in preparation for the newly formatted four-
team 2024 Asia Rugby Men’s Championship. Hong Kong
China went on to beat the newly added UAE, Korea
and Malaysia in June and were rewarded with their 5th
consecutive championship title.

The 2024 Asia Rugby Women's Championship was held in
Hong Kong, which resulted in Hong Kong China Women'’s
XVs beating Kazakhstan and finishing second. This meant
that our women qualified for the WXV global competition,
in which they will pursue one of the final two qualifying
spots at the Rugby World Cup 2025.

Hong Kong China Men's 7s team won gold, and the
Women's 7s team won bronze at the Hangzhou Asian
Games in September 2023. The men’s team went on to
finish second in the Asia Rugby Sevens Series while the
women's team finished third, resulting in both teams
qualifying for the World Rugby Challenger Series, in
which the men finished 5th and the women finished 9th.
Both Hong Kong China Men’s and Women’s 7s teams
competed in the Olympic Qualification tournament in
Osaka, Japan, in November 2023, where the men narrowly
lost to Japan in the final and the women finished 3rd. This
meant both teams qualified for the Olympic Repechage
2024, but neither team was able to go on and qualify for
the Paris 2024 Olympic Games.

Our flagship event, the Cathay/HSBC Hong Kong Sevens,
was successfully hosted in April 2024. Hong Kong China
Men'’s 7s went on to win the inaugural Melrose Claymores
tournament by beating Japan in the final, following a win
over China and a loss to Japan in the group stages. Hong
Kong China Women'’s 7s finished second after a loss to
China in the final, but following impressive group stage
wins against both China and Thailand.

The HKCR Performance Pathways programme has
developed to the point that we now have an established
HKCR and HKSI Academy programme focusing on U16
and U18 Hong Kong qualified players, as well as the
launch of a local Hong Kong Talent ID Academy to target
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and identify Hong Kong-born players within the HKSSF
system. The Academy had its first U16 performance
cultural tour to Japan in April 2023, whilst the U18 boys
HKSI team competed in a very competitive Rosslyn Park 7s
for the first time as Hong Kong China.

The U19 Men'’s Asia Rugby Championship was hosted in
Hong Kong, and Hong Kong China Men went on to win
both games against Chinese Taipei and Korea to secure
qualification for the 2024 World Rugby U20 Trophy.

Within the HKCR Match Officials Programme, there were
106 active officials in the 2023/24 season, completing
2,042 appointments domestically. 20% of our officials
are females, while 25 individuals were involved for the
first time this season. The HKCR Development Group of
referees showed great potential throughout the season,
with all of them involved in the Premiership environment
and five appointed to a role in a Premiership match for the
first time during the 2023/24 season.

HKCR match officials were heavily involved in
representative refereeing across a number of events
and tournaments during the 2023/24 season, with HKCR
officials appointed to 70 international fixtures throughout
the season - from World Rugby level to Asia Rugby
appointments and regional tournaments - as well as
referee exchanges.

International recognition for HKCR referees included
Craig Chan, who continued on the SVNS Women's
Series, and Matt Rodden was also involved as a TMO/
performance reviewer/selector for the SVNS Men'’s Series.
They both attended the Paris Olympic Games in their
respective roles. Sunny Lee and Morgan White were both
appointed to the World Rugby Sevens Challenger Series
and both attended all events. Morgan and Sunny - both
on debut - and Matt were appointed as referees for Asia
Rugby Championship matches, while we had a number
of assistant referee, performance reviewer and TMO
appointments alongside these. Morgan, Sunny and Craig
were appointed to the Asia Rugby Sevens Series and
the Asian Qualifiers for the Paris 2024 Olympic Games
with Matt also attending all events as TMO/performance
reviewer. More recently, Morgan was appointed as a
referee forthe 2024 World Rugby U20 Trophy in Edinburgh
and will be an assistant referee in the Pacific Nations Cup
in September, with Sunny selected as an assistant referee
for WXV3 in 2023 and is set to repeat this in 2024.
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DISCOVERY BAY PIRATES RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

MEEEREKE
TEAMS B B
Discovery Bay Pirates RFC mEgsEERE

ﬁ, GAI WU RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB
&) mwmneg

TEAMS BK B

Gai Wu Blaze g 1 1 Ik = Blaze [
Gai Wu Blossoms ZE 15 1% Bk & Blossoms &
Gai Wu Falcons i # 18 Bk = Falcons [
Gai Wu Fawkes g #5 18 Bk & Fawkes [X
Gai Wu Hawks 6 #A 18 Bk & Hawks [X

p) HKU SANDY BAY RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB
(5 | . . e
mem FERXRBDERNKT

TEAMS B B

IMPACTHK HKU Sandy Bay IMPACTHK & # X 28 b i 185 Bk X

IMPACTHK HKU Sandy Bay Vikings IMPACTHK & i X 2 i i {8 BK Vikings [X

IMPACTHK HKU Sandy Bay Marauders IMPACTHK &8 X2 EBHE
Marauders [

IMPACTHK HKU Sandy Bay Typhoons IMPACTHK & # X 28 > i 1 Bk & Storm[x

Storm
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SPONSORS & Bfl

Side Step Ltd
Figo's Seaside Cafe
Side Step Roasters Coffee

SPONSORS £ Hj)

Sushi Nakamuraya

Honjin

VITRU Physio & Fitness
Movewell Physiotherapy Centre

MEE

SPONSORS & Bf]

FTI Consulting 3 Sreens

Links Moving La Cave
Moore HK The Globe
Wychwood Nutrition
School Kitchen
Asphodel EPT

THP Dental Delaneys
Tsunami BSCI

Blue Girl Pillar Sports

SAN Pellegrino

CHARITIES & =

IMPACTHK

Blue Tie Ball
Movember
Phenominally Pink
Mehkong Club



@

HONG KONG CITY RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

EEEHEXSE
TEAMS B B
City RC Quakes 1ek 75 48 BK & Quakes X
City RC Sparkles Ik T 18 Bk & Sparkles Bk
HONG KONG DISCIPLINED SERVICES RUGBY CLUB
=) BRLEMBEEXRS
TEAMS 2 9
Discipline Services XV BEECENKRERETHEARK
Discipline Services Women's EECENRBRE (XTF)

HONG KONG FOOTBALL CLUB

BEEHKSE
TEAMS BX B
HKFC Natixis Club & 8 B IK & Natixis K
HKFC Natixis Dragons % 8 [2 Bk & Natixis Dragons &
HKFC Natixis Scorpions & 18 B BK § Natixis Scorpions [
HKFC Natixis Select & 18 B Bk & Natixis Select &

HKFC Natixis Sequins
HKFC Natixis Bulls
HKFC Natixis Ice
HKFC Natixis Fire

& B B Ik = Natixis Bulls [

& 8 B IX = Natixis Sequins [
& 5 B 3K = Natixis lce X

& 8 I B & Natixis Fire Bk

TEEBERES

MEMBERCLUBS - € 8 &

SPONSORS & Bfl

Origin Fitness & Martial Arts

SPONSORS & Hjj

Hysan

Celsius

Metro Sports Physiotherapy
Elite Sportswear Solution
Pillar Sports Limited

SPONSORS & Hjj

Natixis Corporate & Investment
Banking

AIA

Latham & Watkins
Mourant

Toppan Digital Language
Orion

TEIZEISCNFEERS 67



MEMBERCLUBS - € & &

HONG KONG POLICE RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

EEZEREBHKE
TEAMS BK B SPONSORS &5 i
Police RFC EBERIERK
Police Sirens &8 ZRIBIKE Sirens X

HONG KONG MINI RUGBY FOOTBALL UNION
EBNEEBXES

HONG KONG RUGBY CLUBS YOUTH ASSOCIATION
EEELOFEKES

HONG KONG SCHOOLS' RUGBY UNION
SRS kR
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@ HONG KONG SCOTTISH RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

EEGEEABKRS
TEAMS Bk B SPONSORS £ i
KPMG HK Scottish EERETERBEABIRE KPMG
KPMG HK Scottish Nomads EEHE B HBHE A B E Nomads Scan Global Logistics
KPMG HK Scottish Brave Hearts 5 B & i 848 W A 8 3 ® Brave Hearts fx  Apprentice Holdings
KPMG HK Scottish Claymores EEASEHREMAMRE Claymores B~ ScOtHoN9
r e 1w | . Examinator Online
KPMG HK Scottish Kukris B2 E R E B &8 A B IR E Kukris B Milwaukee
KPMG HK Scottish Kelpies £ 5 W E B 8 S B A H X F Kelpies B BruceRae
Murray and Currie Property
RugbyTots
Tsunami
HONG KONG RUGBY REFEREES SOCIETY
BEEBKKERSE
TEAMS BR B SPONSORS & B
Tanner de Witt

Clement Shield

St James's Place
Delaney'’s the Irish Pub
Healthy Little Foodies
Monet Floral Gallery

HONG KONG WOMEN'S RUGBY
HEBZFEIK
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KOWLOON RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB
NERKES

TEAMS B B SPONSORS # B
DAC Kowloon (Men) DAC NEBEKE (B F) Kroll
DAC Kowloon 2nd DAC NEEEERE &% Z K Quality Healthcare
DAC Kowloon Brothers DAC 1, BE #& Bk & Brothers [ Rentokil-Initial
DAC Kowloon Barbarians DAC 1 & & Bk & Barbarians [ BFT

Streamline Sports
DAC Kowloon Beavers DAC 1, 5E 18 Bk & Beavers [ Tsunami
DAC Kowloon (Women) DAC NEEBERE (XL F)
DAC Kowloon 2nd (Women) DAC NEEBHREE ZK(LF)

£ REVOLUTION SPORTS RECREATION CLUB
&) zeznuBEge

TEAMS BK B SPONSORS & Hf
Revolution Men B B FEEKEK Only Mine - Wedding & Events
Revolution Azure ERH T FEEK Azure [ Pillars Sports

Sol Mate Club

RUGBY UNION CLUB
Bk SRR

g@ SCAA CAUSEWAY BAY RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB
9 mzanmsmna

TEAMS BK Bx SPONSORS & B
SCAA Causeway Bay Phoenix 7 3§ # /2 1 B = Phoenix [& Atelier Pacific
SCAA Causeway Bay Marines A F i /2 8 Bk F Marines & Jackel Porter
SCAA Causeway Bay Griffins ' 7 8 i 15 BR F Griffins B Watak Contract Limited
Pedestrian Coffee
Carnegies
Streamline Sports
Pillar Sports

Body Solution
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TAIPO DRAGON RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

KIHEBESE
TEAMS BK B SPONSORS # B
Dynamic Care Taipo Dragon (Men) Dynamic Care XK iHBEH K E (5 F) Century Logistics Company
Tai Po District Council Taipo Dragon 2 Tai Po District Council X i BEH Ik & Limited
(Men) E-H(BEFR) Wellmei Holding Company Limited
Dynamic Care Taipo Dragon (Women) Dynamic Care X {HEE IR IK & (X F)
) TIN SHUI WAI RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB
c 4
&4 mxmmne
TEAMS BR B SPONSORS # Bf
RB-SRKA Tin Shui Wai Pandas (Men) RB-SRK KKE RESHIEIKE (B F) Richards Basmajiam
RB-SRKA Tin Shui Wai Pandas 2 RB-SRK X 7K [E] R 5 18 Bk & 58 — [X Simon Reid-Kay & Associates
RB-SRKA Tin Shui Wai RFC 3 RB-SRK X 7K [E] 18 Bk & 55 = [X A7 EiBE Shinko
RB-SRKA Tin Shui Wai Pandas (Women) RB-SRK K7k B RESHIBIRE (X F) Zillion

e TYPHOONS RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

8 [ 185 Bk
TEAMS B B SPONSORS & Bjj
Typhoons Plan A 86 /2| 128 Bk & A 51 2l X 17 Fenwick
Typhoons T3 e 2 155 Bk & T3 fx MindHK
Sandy Bay Typhoons Thunder i i |8 & 18 BK & Thunder X Hybrid Gym

Joint Dynamics
Sunset at Aninuan Beach Resort
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UNIVERSITY RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

KEBEKXE
TEAMS BK B SPONSORS £ i
University Wizards X 218 IR E Wizards B RPC
University RFC 2 KEBBEREE K Talking Mental
University RFC (Women) ABERE (&F) Third Dimension Diving S.E.A.
Preptime Architecture
Wingjoy Garment

Hong Kong Beer Company

USRC TIGERS RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

CEERREKRE
TEAMS B B SPONSORS # Bf
Kroll USRC Tigers (Men) Kol ZEE2REK (B F) Kroll
Kroll USRC Tigers Titans (Men) Kol SEEZEEEHRETitansBX(2F)  Quality Healthcare
Kroll USRC Tigers Vandals (Men) Kroll = B &% i Bk & Vandals B (8 7)  Rentokil Initial
Kroll USRC Tigers Development (Men) Kol ZEEREERK(BEF) AQ Strong
— " . Moonzen Brewery
Kroll USRC Tigers Goutonians (Men) Kroll = & & J& /% # Bk & Goutonians [X Avo Insurance
BF

. ‘> _) oy Streamline Sports
Kroll USRC Tigers (Women) Kol ZEE8EREK(ZF) Tsunami Sport
Kroll USRC Tigers 2 (Women) Kol = EEEREBREEZBK(LZF)

VALLEY RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

EEHRE
TEAMS B B SPONSORS # Bf
Societe Generale Valley RFC (Men) FEHFEFIERS(BEFERHEE) Societe Generale
Societe Generale Valley Knights i% B FE F B8 IR E Knights B Swire Properties | Taikoo Shing
Societe Generale Valley Mavericks i% B 2 7 15 B & Mavericks X Ma.yer Brown
Societe Generale Valley Griffins i% 0 BE ) 48 IR F Griffins BX iw"’e ﬁeverzge:‘ | Bonaqua
. . ,, ong Kong Exchange
Societe Generale Valley RFC (Women) FERENBRS(XFEREE) Linkngovigng 9
Societe Generale Valley Red EEFER IR E Red FX Happy Valley Bar and Grill
ONLY Beverages
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STATISTICS OF REPRESENTATIVE TEAMS - S R LEER2023/2024

HONG KONG CHINA MEN'S XV
FEHEESFTAARRTRK

Men's XVs International Test Series - Novemberfest Cup 2023 14 NOV 2023, So Kon Po Sports Ground

BF15ANEHREIRE — 2023511 B EHE 2023F 118140, HiISHENS

Squad EkEZE: Ben HIGGINS, John McCORMICK-HOUSTON, Keelan CHAPMAN, Callum McCULLOUGH, Patrick JENKINSON, Tyler McNUTT,
Pierce MACKINLAY-WEST, Joshua HRSTICH (Captain &), Jamie Lauder, Nathan DE THIERRY, Harry SAYERS, Thomas HILL, Ben AXTEN-
BURRETT, Sebastian BRIEN, Paul ALTIER, Jude HARDING, Zacceus CINNAMOND, Faizal SOLOMONA PENESA, Mark PRIOR, Luke VAN DER
SMIT, Hugh McCORMICK-HOUSTON, Jack COMBES, Matt WORLEY

14/11/2023 Hong Kong China RE&E® (29) v (16) Germany E[E] WON f%

1st /2 (5B13/2k%)

Men's XVs International Test Series - Novemberfest Cup 2023 18 NOV 2023, Aberdeen Sports Ground

EF15NEHREIRE — 2023F11HEHA 20235118180, HE{FESZ

Squad EKE & 88: Zacceus CINNAMOND, Jude HARDING, Keelan CHAPMAN, Callum McCULLOUGH, Mark PRIOR, Joshua HRSTICH (Captain [
£%), Pierce MACKINLAY-WEST, Luke VAN DER SMIT, Jack COMBES, Nathan DE THIERRY, Sebastian BRIEN, Ben AXTEN-BURRETT, Harry SAYERS,
Matt WORLEY, Paul ALTIER, John McCORMICK-HOUSTON, Rory CINNAMOND, Faizal SOLOMONA PENESA, Jamie PINCOTT, Liam Edwards,
Pat Joe LAIDLER (Harry), Jack ABBOTT, Murray BRECHIN

18/11/2023 Hong Kong China E & (46) v (10) Germany #E[] WON B
1st /2 (8£13/2F%)

Asia Rugby Men's Championship - HKC vs UAE 1 JUN 2024, Hong Kong Football Club

TS FIEBkERIEE - DEEE ¥ [UE 2024F6H1H, BEEEKE

Squad EKEZE: Rory CINNAMOND, John McCORMICK-HOUSTON, Zacceus CINNAMOND, Jamie PINCOTT, Kyle SULLIVAN, Joshua HRSTICH
(Captain [xf), James SAWYER, Luke VAN DER SMIT, Pat Joe LAIDLER (Harry), Matteo AVITABILE, Charles HIGSON-SMITH, Thomas HILL, Ben
AXTEN-BURRETT, Sebastian BRIEN, Paul ALTIER, Alexander POST, Chukwudi EDISON, Faizal SOLOMONA PENESA, Callum McCULLOUGH,
Tyler McNUTT, Camill CHEUNG, Jack NEVILLE, Harry SAYERS

1/6/2024 Hong Kong China E&F# (52) v (5) UAE TS WON

1st /2 (518/2kK)

Asia Rugby Men's Championship - HKC vs MYR 8 JUN 2024, UPM Stadium, Selangor, Malaysia

MBS FIEEIRIEE - FEEE ¥ BRAD 202456H8H, BRALEERHRUPMEES

Squad EKEZE: Rory CINNAMOND, Alexander POST, Faizal SOLOMONA PENESA, Kyle SULLIVAN, Callum MCCULLOUGH, Tyler McNUTT,
Pierce MACKINLAY-WEST, Joshua HRSTICH (Captain %K), Pat Joe LAIDLER (Harry), Glyn HUGHES, Paul ALTIER, Ben AXTEN-BURRETT, Jack
NEVILLE, Sebastian BRIEN, Matteo AVITABILE, Calum SCOTT, Chukwudi EDISON, Zacceus CINNAMOND, Jamie PINCOTT, James SAWYER,
Camill CHEUNG, Thomas HILL, Murray BRECHIN

8/6/2024 Malaysia BEZR#855 (6) v (70) Hong Kong China FEFE WON B%

1st /2 (5£1538/2Fx)
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Asia Rugby Men's Championship - HKC v KOR 22 JUN 2024, Hong Kong Football Club

RN FEIKERIRE - hEIEE & B 202456 H22H, HEEHKE

Squad EKE & E: Rory CINNAMOND, John McCORMICK-HOUSTON, Zacceus CINNAMOND, Jamie PINCOTT, Callum McCULLOUGH, Joshua

HRSTICH (Captain [%{&), James SAWYER, Luke VAN DER SMIT, Pat Joe LAIDLER (Harry), Matteo AVITABILE, Harry SAYERS, Thomas HILL, Ben
AXTEN-BURRETT, Sebastian BRIEN, Paul ALTIER, Alexander POST, Ben HIGGINS, Faizal SOLOMONA PENESA, Kyle SULLIVAN, Tyler McNUTT,
Camill CHEUNG, Gregor McNEISH, Jack ABBOTT

22/6/2024 Hong Kong China REZEF#E (67) v (7) Korea Fg§& WON B

1st /2 (B13/2kK)
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HONG KONG CHINA MEN'S Vil
FEEFESEFEABKRRERK

Asia Rugby Sevens Series - Korea 26-27 AUG 2023, Asiad Namdong Stadium, Incheon

TMEABRRSIE - FEeRih 2023£8H26-27H, 1Z) | FiRZEE SHIEEkIS

Squad BRE & 8: Max WOODWARD (FK¥4#5) (Captain ), Michael COVERDALE (5 L), Alessandra NARDONI ([E2E ), LEE Ka To Cado (Z+&
&), Russell WEBB (£Jk#f), Max DENMARK (F}5552), Liam DOHERTY (#1i#), James CHRISTIE (£4C88), YIU Kam Shing (#k#85%), Hugo STILES (SRS
Hf), Liam HERBERT ($tEB4%), KWOK Pak Nga Eric (S8tA7)

26/8/2023 Pool Games $40% Hong Kong China FiE|&i# (45) v (7) Singapore il WON B
Pool Games $340% Hong Kong China HE&i# (29) v (14) China HE WON B
Pool Games $4HE Hong Kong China FE&E# (0) v (27) Japan BA LOST &
27/8/2023 Cup Semi-Final HEERE Hong Kong China BREI&# (19) v (5) Korea 542 WON B
Cup Final FERE Hong Kong China FEZE# (10) v (12) Japan BAE LOST &

Hangzhou 19th Asian Games 2022 24-26 SEP 2023, Hangzhou, China

2022F M E19E M EE = 2023%F9824-26H, hEKIH

Squad EkE 2 E8: Max WOODWARD (FK¥E4¥F) (Captain [5{R), Alessandra NARDONI (F£E/8), Liam HERBERT (#tE4%), Max DENMARK (F5552),
Michael COVERDALE (5 FLi#iFg), LEE Ka To Cado (Z-KE), Russell WEBB (£Jk#r), Alex McQUEEN (Z58%1]), James CHRISTIE (£:42E£), Liam DOHERTY
(#1#i8), Hugo STILES (SEELERHR), YIU Kam Shing (BkE2FE)

24/9/2023 Pool Games $4HE Hong Kong China FEZ# (40) v (7) Malaysia F52RFGEE WON B
Pool Games 7340 Hong Kong China & (43) v (5) Philippines JE2E& WON B
25/9/2023 ;;!Edg“gg;ga"er":i“a' Hong Kong China HEIi& (42) v (5) Chinese Taipei FREE&L WON %
26/9/2023 ;;;%“g;%semi'ﬁ“a' Hong Kong China FIEI& % (12) v (7) Japan B WON %
Gold Medal Final £§2%& Hong Kong China HIEZE# (14) v (7) Korea m&g WON B

GOLD MEDAL
1st /12 (£h8/12[K)
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Asia Rugby Sevens Series - Thailand 14-15 OCT 2023, The Police Stadium, Bangkok

TN-EANBERRSE - HREuL 2023F10814-15H, 28 The Police Stadium

Squad ERE&ZES: Callum McCULLOUGH (Z3&), Harry SAYERS (#EEBHR), Pierce MACKINLAT-WEST (ZE2/22Hf), Max DENMARK (F5552), James
CHRISTIE (£428%), Liam DOHERTY (#t#{ti#), Liam HERBERT (4t E4%), LEE Ka To Cado (Z-K[E) (Captain ), Russell WEBB (£Jk#f), Sebastian BRIEN
(33EZE), Bryn PHILLIPS (FEEFEI7HR), FONG Kit Fung (FE{5£88), MAK Kwai Chung (Z5Z08)

14/10/2023  Pool Games 9 4H% Hong Kong China F1IE&i# (43) v (5) Malaysia B3kFGIE WON B
Pool Games 9340 Hong Kong China FE & (43) v (0) Singapore #ifili WON B
Pool Games $340% Hong Kong China FIEZ# (61) v (0) Korea Fg&& WON B
15/10/2023 Cup Semi-Final ZEERE Hong Kong China HE&# (50) v (0) UAE PUBEE WON
Cup Final HERE Hong Kong China FEZE# (26) v (12) Japan BF WON B

Asia Rugby Olympic Qualifier 2023 18-19 NOV 2023, Osaka Japan

2023FHETGMNEIEE 2023%11818-19 B, BAXR

Squad EkEZ8: Max WOODWARD (Captain &) (K¥#43%), Alessandro NARDONI ([E£E[E), Liam HERBERT (#{B4%), Max DENMARK (F552),
Michael COVERDALE (= FLi#iF), LEE Ka To Cado (Z-K[E), Russell WEBB (£Jk#h), Alex McQUEEN (2582 73), James CHRISTIE (£:42E#&), Liam DOHERTY
(E5R&EER), Bryn PHILIPS (FERFESZHR), YIU Kam Shing (Hki2E%)

18/11/2023 Pool Games S4HE Hong Kong China FE&i# (53) v (0) Thailand Z=[E WON B
Pool Games 7 4H%E Hong Kong China FEIZE# (52) v (0) Singapore Fllli WON B
Pool Games $4H%E Hong Kong China HEZE#E (24) v (0) UAE fUBEE WON B
19/11/2023 Cup Semi-Final BE#ERE Hong Kong China FIEZ# (19) v (12) China Hi[E WON B
Cup Final ZERE Hong Kong China HEZE# (14) v (21) Japan BF LOST &

2nd /8 (552%/8k%)
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STATISTICS OF REPRESENTATIVE TEAMS - S R LEER2023/2024

HSBC SEVENS CHALLENGER SERIES - ROUND 1 12-14 JAN 2024, The Sevens Stadium Dubai

EL-CABERREERSIE - F—ub 2024F1812-148, HFECABERESS

Squad FREZE: Pierce MACKINLAY-WEST (ZSEREEHF), Callum McCULLOUGH (Z5153&), Liam DOHERTY (23E&5%), Harry SAYERS (FEHRHR), Max
DENMARK (f35555), Bryn PHILIPS (FEEJESTHR), Russell WEBB (£3Jk#), Sebastian BRIEN (FEEZ[E), FONG Kit Fung (FE{4:8%), James CHRISTIE (£4C
B2), LEE Ka To Cado (Z=-R[), Liam HERBERT (#tE45F)

12/1/2024 Pool Games $3#AE Hong Kong China IEZ# (21) v (7) Papua New Guinea E#5EE#&4MEE WON B
Pool Games 4% Hong Kong China HEIZE& (19) v (7) Georgia I§E H 18 WON B%
13/1/2024 Pool Games $D4HE Hong Kong China HIEZE# (0) v (33) Uruguay BHiE LOST &
Pool Games 7340 Hong Kong China FEZE®H (7) v(19) Germany £ LOST &
14/1/2024 7th Place Final 572 & Hong Kong China HIEZ# (38) v (0) Georgia IE&HEE WON B

7th /12 (55743/12FK)

HSBC SEVENS CHALLENGER SERIES - ROUND 2 8-10 MAR 2024, Montevideo, Uruguay
ESCARIREE RIIE - ETUh 20245388-10H, FRIESIFES

Squad BKE&ZE8: Hugo STILES (SE&;FIHR), Alessandro NARDONI (E2E[E), Callum McCULLOUGH (Zti&), Liam DOHERTY (E5E85%), Harry SAYERS (
TEHRER), Max DENMARK (FE553), Bryn PHILLIPS (FEESES7H), Sebastian BRIEN (FEEZEH), FONG Kit Fung (FB{8£), James CHRISTIE (£:4288), James
SAWYER (&5 1#35E), LEE Ka To (Z=-R), Cado Liam HERBERT ($tE45)

8/3/2024 Pool Games D#HE Hong Kong China EI&E# (42) v (7) Japan HA WON B
Hong Kong China EI&E& (19) v (14) Chile EFl WON &

9/3/2024 Pool Games $4HE Hong Kong China EZ&# (39) vs (0) Mexico BFgEf WON B
Cup Quarter-Final EEFERE Hong Kong China E & (26) vs (7) Tonga BNl WON B%

10/3/2024 Cup Semi-Final FEEERE Hong Kong China E & (21) v (14) Kenya 51 WON B
Cup Final ZERE Hong Kong China FEE# (0) v (28) Uruguay BHizE LOST &

2nd/12 (5527:8/12X)
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HSBC SEVENS CHALLENGER SERIES - ROUND 3 18-19 MAY 2024, Munich, Germany

EEE AEEREERINE - F=ih 2024%5818-19H, EEERBE

Squad EKE&E8: Hugo STILES (SE&FTHT), Alessandro NARDONI (FEZE[E), Callum McCULLOUGH (Z5%), Liam DOHERTY (EE&5%), Harry SAYERS (
FZERER), Max DENMARK (F5553), Bryn PHILLIPS (FEB\SEIZER), Sebastian BRIEN (FEEZEHE), FONG Kit Fung (FE{588), James CHRISTIE (4284), LEE Ka
To Cado (Z-KE), Liam HERBERT ($#tE45)

18/5/2024 Pool Games $4HE Hong Kong China E&E& (54) v (7) Mexico B WON B
Pool Games A& Hong Kong China HE&i& (45) v (5) Tonga A0 WON
Pool Games 4HE Hong Kong China HE& (33) v (12) Uganda BTiE WON B
19/5/2024 Cup Quarter-Final TEEFERE Hong Kong China FIE&& (26) v (7) Tonga 510 WON [
Cup Semi-Final ZEERE Hong Kong China FE&i& (14) v (21) Germany EE] LOST &
3rd Place Final 53822 & Hong Kong China HE&# (12) v (0) Chile 8Fl WON B

3rd/12 (583%/12Fk)

Hong Kong Sevens - Melrose Claymores 5-7 APR 2024, Hong Kong Stadium
EBEIR-E A EHRE - MelroseiRRIE 2024£F485-7H, BB AkIS

Squad BRE 2 85: Max WOODWARD (F¥E#%) , Hugo STILES (SREiFaHR), Alessandro NARDONI (E£2Ef2), Harry SAYERS (fZHBER), Bryn PHILLIPS (3

3ES7HR), Michael COVERDALE (/= FLIBIRR), YIU Kam Shing (k85 5%), FONG Kit Fung (F2{5%8), James CHRISTIE (340B4), James SAWYER (5 1+#g5), LEE
Ka To Cado (Z=-E[¥), Liam HERBERT (¥t B4%)

5/4/2024 Pool Games 4R E Hong Kong China FE&i& (19) v (17) China [ WON &%
6/4/2024 Pool Games {#HE Hong Kong China FEZE& (14) v (33) Japan HA LOST &
7/4/2024 Final jREE Hong Kong China HEI&i& (22) v (12) Japan BA WON B

1st/3 (5E13/kx)

World Rugby Sevens Repechage 2024 21-23 JUN 2024, Monaco
2024 FHRENSIKEESEHNE 20245 6H21-238, EMHE

Squad IXE & E: Max WOODWARD (K¥4%) , Michael COVERDALE (= FLiEi#), Alessandro NARDONI (FE£2EE), James CHRISTIE (£:42E8), Jack

COMBES (HF3), LEE Ka To Cado (Z=-E), Hugo STILES (SR#i#HR), Max DENMARK (#355%), Bryn PHILLIPS (FEE3Es7HR) , Liam DOHERTY(ZEE),
Liam HERBERT (¥LE14%), FONG Kit Fung (FE{58%)

22/6/2024 Pool Games $S4EE Hong Kong China A& (36) v (0) Brazil BFg WON B
Pool Games $40E Hong Kong China @ Zi& (14) v (35) Spain FIIF LOST &
23/6/2024 Cup Quarter-Final HEHHERE Hong Kong China RE&# (5) v (26) Spain FEITSF LOST &

8th /11 (558%8/11X)
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STATISTICS OF REPRESENTATIVE TEAMS - S R LEER2023/2024

HONG KONG CHINA WOMEN'S XV
PEEEZFTHEABEKNAEREK

Women's XV International Test Matches 2-8 OCT 2023, The Sevens Stadium, Dubai

TF15 NBIREISRE 2023£F10A2-8H, #HF L MEXKEESE

Squad BRE4ZE: BALTAZAR Micayla, CHAN Hiu Tung (FEEERZ), DHAR Tanya (Z{#%f), FORREST Shanna (ZLL3)*, GOT Fion (8%55E), HO Hau Yan
(faII5RR)*, LEE Ka Shun (ZFE), LEUNG Wing Yi Vincci (2£88£), LEUNG Choi See (25:%)*, PUN Wai Yan(;iBEfX) (co-captain), TSANG Ching
Man (EEE3Z), TSANG Hoi Laam (5E]lj&), TSANG Sin Yan (EB{5X), TURNER Roshini, AU King To(EXZ#) (co-captain), FONG Rachel(75/\i5),
FUNG Hoi Ching (:B&JliE), HO Tsz Wun ({ali£#8), LO Wing Yin (3% &), QIAN Jiayu (§22R#4), RIVERS Gabriella*, TSE Wing Kiu (:i7k#), WONG
Sze Ying (EE %), WU Rumeng (Ri%%), SMITH Zoe

7/10/2023 Hong Kong China HEZE# (31) v (28) Columbia EffELIE WON [

1st /2 (5518/2kK)

Asia Rugby Women's Championship - HKC vs JAP 22 MAY 2024, King's Park Sports Ground, Hong Kong
Tl FEKREE - PEEFE ¥ B 2024558220, HEFETHESS

Squad ERE4ZE8: LAU Nga Wun (Z2/34E), DHAR Tanya (&;{&#), HEREWINI Kea, BALTAZAR Chloe (£{t4if), TURNER Roshini, CHAN Tsz Ching (
FRIERS), PUN Wai Yan (;8ERX), FORREST Shanna (ZLL3Z), AU King To (EX=#E), FUNG Hoi Ching (&lEE), SMITH Zoe, RIVERS Georgia (;I&[3),
OLSON-THORNE Natasha (&%), CHONG Ka Yan (§£5fiX), LYNAM Sabay, GOT Fion (£7%52E), CHAN Hiu Tung (F§iEf2), LEE Ka Shun (ZEE),
CHOW Mei Nam (8B£##), BALTAZAR Micayla (2848), WAN Tsz Yau ((BIE{K), QIAN Jiayu (#227#4), POON Hoi Yan (;&l&E)

22/5/2024 Hong Kong China FEZF#& (12) v (29)Japan BAE LOST &

2nd /2 (582%/2B%)

Asia Rugby Women's Championship - HKC vs KAZ 1 JUN 2024, Hong Kong Football Club
il FHEEEKERIRTE - HEIEE ¥ 185k 2024F6H1H, BB EHKE

Squad BREZEE: LAU Nga Wun (Z2I##{E), DHAR Tanya (£{#7#), HEREWINI Kea, BALTAZAR Chloe (£2/&£ifj), TURNER Roshini, CHAN Tsz Ching (
FEIERS), PUN Wai Yan (;BZfR) (Captain &), FORREST Shanna (ZLUX), AU King To (EXZ#k), FUNG Hoi Ching (15&/lH5), SMITH Zoe, RIVERS
Georgia (jI%&p3), OLSON-THORNE Natasha (5& ), CHONG Ka Yan (§£2fX), POON Hoi Yan (;&&1&), GOT Fion (B352E), CHAN Hiu Tung (F&lE
f2), LEE Ka Shun (ZEZ), CHOW Mei Nam (88254#), SO Karen Hoi Ting (B%1£{Z), BALTAZAR Micayla (£&]48), QIAN Jiayu ($ZR#4), WAN Tsz Yau
(GRIEMR)

1/6/2024 Hong Kong China E&F& (22) v (0) Kazakhstan I57E5 WON fi§

1st /2 (551:3/2kX)
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HONG KONG CHINA WOMEN'S VII
FEEFELFEABKRNEK

Asia Rugby Sevens Series - Korea 26-27 AUG 2023, Asiad Namdong Stadium, Incheon

TMEABRRSIE - FEeRih 2023£8H26-27H, 1Z) | FiRZEE SHIEEkIS

Squad IRE&ZE8: OLSON-THORNE Natasha((S &), LI Nim Yan Melody Blessing(Z=2E&), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (EXB2{&14), CHAN Chloe (f§£8), CHONG
Ka Yan (#£Z2fX), FORREST Shanna (ZLLI3X), FUNG Hoi Ching (:55]liE), HO Jessica Wai On ({@48%), HUI Man Ling (3F3238), NAM Ka Man (B52f), SO
Yee Kei (8§457%), WRIGHT Rosie (Z:815)

26/8/2023 Pool Games 3 #HE Hong Kong China @& (17) v (0) Kazakhstan [47E5 WON B
Pool Games $34HE Hong Kong China HEZE# (39) v (0) Singapore il WON &%
Pool Games $34AE Hong Kong China FREZE# (7) v (24) China FE] LOST &
27/8/2023 Cup Semi-Final BT AR T Hong Kong China hEI&& (7) v (27) Japan & LOST &
3rd Place Final 83&X&E Hong Kong China FE&E# (7) v (27) Japan BA LOST &

Hangzhou 19th Asian Games 24-26 SEP 2023 - Hangzhou, China

2022EF M1 9/E TR EEE 202359824-26H, E#H

Squad EkE 38 : OLSON-THORNE Natasha (Captain [xE) (& Z), LI Nim Yan Melody Blessing(Z=:&E&), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (EXJ3{E14), CHAN Chloe (
[5#8), CHONG Ka Yan (§£2RX), FORREST Shanna (ZLL3Z), FUNG Hoi Ching ((E/l5), HO Jessica Wai On ({i#£8%), CHAN Stephanie Chor Ki (F321H),
NAM Ka Man (E:228)), TSE Wing Kiu (:§35%&8), HO Tsz Wun ({Ti£48)

24/8/2023 Pool Games S#HE Hong Kong China FIEZ & (38) v (0) India ENE WON j
Pool Games 34AE Hong Kong China HEZ&Fi# (29) v (0) Singapore Hilli WON B%
Cup Semi-Final FEERE Hong Kong China FEZE & (5) v (22) Japan HA LOST &
Gold Medal Semi-Final . . .

Es. S

25/8/2023 SRR Hong Kong China FIE & (0) v (33) China HEH] LOST &

26/8/2023  bronze Medal Final Hong Kong China HREIE# (7) v (5) Thailand 2 WON B
SRR ERE

BRONZE MEDAL
3rd /7 ($RKE/78%)
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Asia Rugby Sevens Series - Thailand 14-15 OCT 2023, The Police Stadium, Bangkok

TN-EANBERRSE - HREuL 2023F10814-15H, 28 The Police Stadium

Squad FRE&ES: OLSON-THORNE Natasha (Captain ) (&), LI Nim Yan Melody Blessing(Z=:2ER), BALTAZAR Chloe (E£if), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (
EiB3{518), CHAN Chloe (f%8), NAM Ka Man (B55285), LAM Tsz Yan (#A1ERX), POON Hoi Yan (;&& &), HO Jessica Wai On ({TJ4$%), CHONG Ka Yan (4
E2RX), CHAN Stephanie Chor Ki (f&#£1H), MBA OYANA Julia Mibuy

14/10/2023  Pool Games 9 4H% Hong Kong China F1IE|&i# (31) v (5) Kazakhstan [87&5 WON B
Pool Games 9340 Hong Kong China E & (39) v (10) Malaysia FS2RFEEE WON B
Pool Games 4HE Hong Kong China RE&E# (7) v (17) Japan BA& LOST&
15/10/2023 Cup Semi-Final ZEERE Hong Kong China HEIZE# (17) v (14) China H[E] WON
Cup Final HERE Hong Kong China FE&# (5) v (29) Japan A& LOST&

Asia Rugby Olympic Qualifier 2023 18-19 NOV 2023, Osaka Japan

2023FHETGMNEIEE 20235%11818-198, BA KR

Squad EkEZ8: OLSON-THORNE Natasha (Captain [5f) (&), LI Nim Yan Melody Blessing(Z=:&E%), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (EXfZ{514), CHAN Chloe
(B%E%H), NAM Ka Man (2:5285), POON Hoi Yan (;&8E), HO Jessica Wai On ({@##%), CHONG Ka Yan (§£X), CHAN Stephanie Chor Ki (FE3E1H),
FORREST Shanna (ZLL3Z), FUNG Hoi Ching (E5]#5), TSE Wing Kiu ({3%a)

18/11/2023 Pool Games S4HE Hong Kong China FE&# (29) v (5) India ENE WON B
Pool Games 34HE Hong Kong China FEIZ& (48) v (0) Guam BB WON B
Pool Games $340E Hong Kong China HE%i& (0) v (50) China Fi[H LOST&
15/10/2023 Cup Semi-Final BE#ERE Hong Kong China FE&i# (5) v (33) Japan BA LOST &
3rd Place Final $3Z:%% Hong Kong China FREIE & (12) v (0) Thailand 2= WON %

3rd /7 (E38/7FK)
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STATISTICS OF REPRESENTATIVE TEAMS - S £ KL EER2023/2024

HSBC SEVENS CHALLENGER SERIES - ROUND 1 12-14 JAN 2024, The Sevens Stadium Dubai

ESEABRRBERIIE - F—i4 2024F1H12-148, HEFCMEKESE

Squad EKE %2 & : OLSON-THORNE Natasha(F&Z), LI Nim Yan Melody Blessing(Z=:&E&), CHAN Chloe (f&%8), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (BXIZ{E14), NAM Ka
Man (BEE28)), HO Jessica Wai On ({0#£§%), POON Hoi Yan (i&g]lE), CHONG Ka Yan (3£Z2fX), RIVERs Gabriella (;@JZ&{£), MBA OYANA Julia Mibuy,
LYNAM Sabay, CHAN Tsz Ching (FEIERE)

12/1/2024 Pool Games 3 #HE Hong Kong China @& (17) v (0) Paraguay B WON B
Pool Games $34HE Hong Kong China HE]Z# (0) v (19) Argentina [TiRFE LOST &
13/1/2024 Pool Games $4AE Hong Kong China HIEZ# (0) v (33) Poland i LOST &
9th Place Semi-Final 598 E#RE Hong Kong China EEi& (22) v (10) Mexico 27 WON B%
12/1/2024 9th Place Play-Off EOZERE Hong Kong China FIEZ# (0) v (31) Papua New Guinea B iE#iE5MIE LOST &

HSBC SEVENS CHALLENGER SERIES - ROUND 2 8-10 March 2024, Montevideo, Uruguay

ELCAEREERSIE - Fuh 2024£3A8-10H, GHRIEFIFHES

Squad BkE & E: OLSON-THORNE Natasha (5&2%), FORREST Shanna (ZLL3Z), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (BXIE{EDS), NAM Ka Man (25528§), FUNG Hoi Ching
(#5E]lH5), POON Hoi Yan (i&81&), CHONG Ka Yan (§+52hX), BALTAZAR Chloe (22{), RIVERs Gabriella (jiZ7%), BALTAZAR Micayla, MBA OYANA
Julia Mibuy, PUN Wai Yan (;&Z5X), CHAN Tsz Ching (FRIEHS)

8/3/2024 Pool Games 4R E Hong Kong China REE# (12) v (0) Kenya 53 WON B
Pool Games S#HE Hong Kong China EIZEE (5) v (24) Belgium LLFIES LOST &
9/3/2024 Pool Games $34HZE Hong Kong China FIEZ&i& (27) v (14) Papua New Guinea B TE#25A5E WON [
Cup Quarter-Final ZHE}HERE Hong Kong China FE & (16) v (22) Uganda BFiE LOST &
10/3/2024 7th Place Final S£73RE Hong Kong China FE & (27) v (22) Kenya 53 WON B

7th/12 (58743/12[K)
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HSBC SEVENS CHALLENGER SERIES - ROUND 3 18-19 May 2024, Krakow, Poland

ESC A EHRIEERSIE - F=ih 2024£5H18-198, KM RIEIX

Squad IXE & E5: AU YEUNG Sin Yi (EXB5{ETR), NAM Ka Man (E5528§), HO Jessica Wai On ({@48%), CHAN Abigail (F&#H$2), CHAN Stephanie Chor Ki (
PEZETH), HO Tsz Wun ({TJ1ELE), WONG Sze Ying (EEE), HUI Man Ling (§F3218), BOURK Jamie, CHIAN Hoi Ning (#21528), SIU Wing Ni Winnie (FEKYR),
PYLE Amy

18/5/2024 Pool Games $S4HE Hong Kong China FE & (12) v (33) Thailand F[E] LOST &
Pool Games 94EE Hong Kong China & (0) v (34) China F[E LOST &
Pool Games $S4EE Hong Kong China FEZ&& (0) v (36) CzechialEse LOST &

19/5/2024 9th Place Semi-Final 559 Z&#R2&E Hong Kong China FIEIE& (7) v (33) Papua New Guinea EFAEnF&5MEE LOST &

11th Place Final 811X E Hong Kong China FIEZ&E# (10) v (7) Mexico S WON &%
11th/12 (8811&/12Fx)

Hong Kong Sevens - Melrose Claymores 5 - 7 April 2024, Hong Kong Stadium

EBEMR-CABIKE — MelroseiRHIE 2024fF4B85-7H, 8 XIS

Squad BkE#E: OLSON-THORNE Natasha (&), FORREST Shanna(ZLL3Z), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (EXf5{E14), NAM Ka Man (2:528%), FUNG Hoi Ching
(/5E/IHE,) HO Jessica Wai On ({Tl4£%), POON Hoi Yan (;E&/Zl), CHONG Ka Yan (#£52RX), RIVERs Gabriella (;7&7%), CHAN Stephanie Chor Ki (F%21H),
BALTAZAR Micayla (£8]|t5), CHAN Tsz Ching (FEIEHE)

5/4/2024 Pool Games 34HE Hong Kong China FIEE# (19) v (12) China F[E WON B
6/4/2024 Pool Games S4HE Hong Kong China & (28) v (10) Thailand Z=E] WON B
7/4/2024 Final ;RE Hong Kong China FEZ# (10) v (24) China H[E LOST&

2nd /3 (55273/3FX)
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World Rugby Sevens Repechage 2024 21-23 JUN 2024, Monaco

2024 FHREAEHRESEME 2024%6H21-23H, B

Squad IkEZ8: OLSON-THORNE Natasha (5&2), FORREST Shanna(ZLLI3Z), CHAN Chloe (f$%8), AU YEUNG Sin Yi (EXf3{518), BALTAZAR Micayla
(E25148), NAM Ka Man (52285), CHAN Tsz Ching (FFEIERS), CHIAN Hoi Ning ($21522), CHAN Stephanie Chor Ki (fE#£1H), POON Hoi Yan (;&&lLE),
CHONG Ka Yan (3£&2RX), HO Tsz Wun (fal{£8%)

21/6/2024 Pool Games 4% Hong Kong China HEZ# (33) v (15) Paraguay BfizE WON B
22/6/2024 Pool Games S#HE Hong Kong China E &S (22) v (12) Jamaica FE N WON B

Pool Games $34HE Hong Kong China FE & (14) v (17) Uganda 5Fi& LOST &
23/6/2024 Cup Quarter-Final FFEHERE Hong Kong China HEZE (0) v (36) Poland i LOST &

8th/12 (558%3/12[K)
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HKCR LEAGUE STANDINGS - fE & B E K E S E S

HONG KONG CHINA U20 MEN'S XV
REPRESENTATIVE TEAM
PEEEE F20mm M TEEKMA XK

World Rugby U20 Trophy 2023 15-30 AUG 2023, Kenya

2023FHREFIEERTR 2023488 15-30H, &5

Squad EKEZE: Samuel MARTIN, Jude HARDING, David BENNETT, Callum FITZHENRY, Theodore Angel MAG, Tyler MCNUTT(Captain &),
Marco CONTI, Dominic HEDLEY, Camill Martin Marie CHEUNG, Julien BOURRON, Joshua EUSTACE, Oliver PYLE, Maxwell THRELKELD, Blake
ELLIOT, Dylan MCCANN, Takuma YAMAUCH]I, Chun Yim Glenn HUI, William Harry Browning RIGBY, Ciaran DELANEY, Fritz-Gonzales MAHN,
Adam BABER, Jamie BLAIR, Joseph Michael DENMARK

15/7/2023 Hong Kong China FE&F# (0) v (53) Spain BRI LOST&

Squad ERE4Z8: Samuel MARTIN, Jude HARDING, William Harry Browning RIGBY, Ciaran DELANEY, Chun Yim Glenn HUI, Fritz-Gonzales
MAHN, Marco CONTI, Tyler MCNUTT (Captain [5£), Adam BABER, Julien BOURRON, Joshua EUSTACE, Oliver PYLE, Maxwell THRELKELD,
Joseph Michael DENMARK, Dylan MCCANN, Takuma YAMAUCH], Izac Tehanakore MANU, David BENNETT, Theodore Angel MAG, Callum
FITZHENRY, Camill Martin Marie CHEUNG, Jamie BLAIR, Charles AMISTOZO-WARREN

20/7/2023 Hong Kong China FE&F# (27) v (30) Samoa [EEEEE LOST &

Squad EKE R E: Samuel MARTIN, Takuma YAMAUCHI, David BENNETT, Ciaran DELANEY, Chun Yim Glenn HUI, Dominic HEDLEY, Marco
CONTI, Tyler MCNUTT (Captain [x£), Camill Martin Marie CHEUNG, Julien BOURRON, Joshua EUSTACE, Oliver PYLE, Maxwell THRELKELD,
Joseph Michael DENMARK, Dylan MCCANN, Dewi SIMONS, Izac Tehanakore MANU, William Harry Browning RIGBY, Callum FITZHENRY, Fritz-
Gonzales MAHN, Blake ELLIOT, Jamie BLAIR, Charles AMISTOZO-WARREN

25/7/2023 Hong Kong China REIE® (16) v (22) Kenya 53 LOST &

Squad EKEZE: Samuel MARTIN, Dewi SIMONS, David BENNETT, Ciaran DELANEY, Chun Yim Glenn HUI, Dominic HEDLEY, Marco CONTI,
Tyler MCNUTT (Captain [&{), Camill Martin Marie CHEUNG, Oliver PYLE, Joshua EUSTACE, Jamie BLAIR, Maxwell THRELKELD, Joseph Michael
DENMARK, Dylan MCCANN, Josh BAILEY, Izac Tehanakore MANU, William Harry Browning RIGBY, Theodore Angel MAG, Fritz-Gonzales
MAHN, Matthew RICKARD, Blake ELLIOT, Charles AMISTOZO-WARREN

30/7/2023 Hong Kong China REI&EE (22) v (47) USA =£E] LOST &

8th /8 (55874/8K)
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HONG KONG CHINA U19 MEN'S XV
REPRESENTATIVE TEAM
R FE &S 71955 LA F15 AMEBk TR

Asia Rugby U19 Men's Championship 2023 8-16 DEC 2023, Hong Kong China

TEM195E LA T B FIEEKERIZEE 2023 2023%1288-16H, hESE

Squad ERE4ZE: Minjun KOO, Benedict SHELDON, David BENNETT, Callum FITZZHENRY, Theodore MAG, Marco CONTI, Oliver CLARKE,
Dominic HEDLEY, Kyran LACY, Blake ELLIOT, Luke MORROW(3X{Z7), Isaac Campbell-WU, Matthew RICKARD, James KEE(4Ci=1H), Maxwell
BLAIR, Dewi SIMONS, Lukas MOLYNEUX, Mitchell CRAWFORD, Toby HUGHES, Fritz MAHN, CHUI Wai Lap (ffZ37), Liam JORDAN, Chan Mun
Hassan Raza LIN(;&$EX)

8/12/2023 Hong Kong China FIE&i# (22) v (7) Chinese Taipei PE&S]L WON [

Squad EKE4ZE: Minjun KOO, Benedict SHELDON, Mitchell CRAWFORD, Callum FITZHENRY, Theodore MAG, Fritz MAHN, Oliver
CLARKE(Captain ), Dominic HEDLEY (VC BIBf), Kyran LACY, Blake ELLIOT, Luke MORROW (32{ZK), Isaac Campbell WU (VC Bk E),
Matthew RICKARD ($47), James KEE (42i=1H), Maxwell BLAIR, Dewi SIMONS, lan WONG (& HEf), Lukas MOLYNEUX, Toby HUGHES, Marco
CONTI, CHUI Wai Lap (#&&37), Luke BANNON, LIN Chan Mun Hassan Raza (i&Z$8H3Z)

16/12/2023 Hong Kong China FE&E® (62) v (7)Korea Fa82 WON B

HONG KONG CHINA U20 MEN'S Vil
REPRESENTATIVE TEAM
PEFE205E B FEAMBEARERE

Asia Rugby U20 Men's 7s Championship 2023 19-20 AUG 2023, Kathmandu, Nepal

2023FEM205E A FBFEANBIRRIEE 202358H19-20H, FEiHmNN#ERER

Squad BREZEE: Fritz-Gonzales MAHN, Marco CONTI, Luke BANNON, Matisse GUILLOT, Fergus CONDON, Blake ELLIOT, Eric CHUI Wai Lap, Hassan
LIN, Camill CHEUNG, Joseph DENMARK, Matthew RICKARD, Nirvan RAI

19/8/2023 Pool Games {#HE Hong Kong China B@Z&i# (26) v (5) Malaysia B3kFGEE WON p&
Pool Games $34AE Hong Kong China FEIZEE (21) v (22) India ENE LOST&
Pool Games S4HE Hong Kong China FEEi# (36) v (0) Nepal [EiHE WON B
20/8/2023 Cup Semi-Final ZEERE Hong Kong China & (35) v (5) Thailand = WON
Cup Final ZERE Hong Kong China FEIZE# (19) v (14) Malaysia B52kFEE WON B

1st/ 5 (5513/5[K)
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HONG KONG CHINA U18 BOYS VI
REPRESENTATIVE TEAM
PEE#E185EIA B FEMEEURR

Asia Rugby U18 Boys Sevens 2023 30 SEP to 1 OCT 2023, Taiwan

2023F M 18RI T B FE BB E 202359H30HE1081H, &%

Squad ERE & E: Luke Oliver BANNON, Oliver Haines CLARKE, Tanner Kit HOLLAND, Liam Pui-Tat JORDAN, Maurits Johannes Hendrik KENNES,
Kyran James LACY, Thomas David LANGLEY, Matthe RICKARD, Fritz Gonzales MAHN, David McMURTRAY, Zachary Steven MEDEIROS, Oliver
SINCLAIR

30/9/2023 Pool Games £ Hong Kong China FEI&E# (17) v (17) India EIE DRAW 0
Pool Games £4% Hong Kong China FE&:# (29) v (0) Malaysia FB3kFHIE WON
Pool Games $348% Hong Kong China FEI&# (47) v (7) Iran {RER WON B

1/10/2023 Cup Semi Final ZEHERE Hong Kong China IEZEi# (14) v (10) Chinese Taipei &S]t WON B
Cup Final ZERE Hong Kong China FEZi# (5) v (12) UAE BIEiiEs LOST &

2nd /7 (5528/7F%)

HONG KONG CHINA U20 GIRLS VIl REPRESENTATIVE TEAM
FEEB20EILTLFEAEKRNALEREK

Asia Rugby U20 Girl's Sevens 2023 19-20 AUG2023, Kathmandu, Nepal

2023F 2055 A FZFE A EEkE 20238198 E20H, BIHEMERER

Squad EKE#ZE8: Claudia HARRISON, Hayley LAl Cheuk Yiu, Alanna GRIERSON, Sabrina CHUNG, Naomi PEETERS, Julia Mibuy MBA OYANA, Ella
LYNAM, Etta KWONG Tin Tung, Sabay LYNAM, Mary SIEKER, Darling Shaheen MOHAMMAD, Zana CHOW Pui Yi

19/8/2023 Pool Games $#AE Hong Kong China FEIZEE (34) v (5) Nepal EiHF WON B
Pool Games 34HE Hong Kong China FREIZE# (12) v (7) Thailand Z&E WON B
Pool Games $4HE Hong Kong China HREI& & (19) v (17) Malaysia B2kFaiE WON B
20/8/2023 Pool Games $4H% Hong Kong China HEI&:# (34) v (0) Nepal B WON %
Pool Games 34HE Hong Kong China FhEIZEFE (12) v (19) Thailand [ LOST &
Pool Games 34HE Hong Kong China FE&# (50) v (7) Malaysia B2k GIE WON B

1st /5 (581&/58x)
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HONG KONG CHINA U18 GIRLS VII REPRESENTATIVE TEAM
FEEE18EILTLFEABERNKREREK

Asia Rugby U18 Girls Sevens 2023 30 SEP to 1 OCT 2023, Taiwan

2023FEiM18E A T ZF L ABIKE 2023%9H30HZE1081H, &i&

Squad EkE 2 E8: CHAN Sze Hang Sheryn (f&17), Orla Cabrini COLLING, Emily FISHER, Jasmine FITZHERNY, Jessica HAUPTFLEISCH, Elsie Laura
HULME, Charlie Bella JEYNES, KWONG Tin Tung (BEBXEE), Ella Rose LYNAM, Olivia Mei RIGBY, Mary Remziye SIEKER, Haruka UEMATSU

30/9/2023 Pool Games $4E Hong Kong China FIEZi# (31) v (5) Chinese Taipei FE&]L WON B
Pool Games 340 Hong Kong China FEI&:# (10) v (17) Thailand ZE LOST&
1/10/2023 Pool Games $4AE Hong Kong China HEZE# (0) v (17) UAE (B2 LOST&
Pool Games S4E Hong Kong China FEE# (22) v (17) India ENE WON B
3rd Place Final £3&% & Hong Kong China FIEZi# (22) v (0) Thailand 2] WON B

3rd / 5 (5333/5%)
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2023/2024 Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Hong Kong Men's Premiership RS £EE | SEWITE FB4RELE
Position HE& Team [%{h

1 HKFC Natixis Club NatixisHEEBEKE

2 HKU Sandy Bay RFC HEXBDEENKE

3 KPMG HK Scottish RFC EEREFEHERAMIRE

4 Societe Generale Valley RFC EEEERTENEIRE

5 DAC Kowloon RFC DACHAEHE kMRS

6 Kroll USRC Tigers Krol =E2RZEIBERE

2023/2024 Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Women's Premiership RS2 £ | SEWITIZ FBAREIGE
Position HE& Team [kfR

1 Natixis HKFC Ice NatixisHBEEKZIce

2 Societe Generale Valley RFC FEEERITENSIE

3 Kroll USRC Tigers RFC Krol ZERFRIBIKE

4 DAC Kowloon RFC DACHBEIRIKES

5 Gai Wu Falcons ZEHAE Ik =ZFalcons

6 SCAA Causeway Bay Phoenix FEDINEEZEIRZPhoenix
2023/2024 HKCR Premiership A {84258 FBREHEA

Position HE& Team Fx{R

1 HKFC Natixis Dragons Natixis&Hi&EEKEDragons

2 Societe Generale Valley Knights EEEERTEFIBEREKnights

3 DAC Kowloon Rugby Club 2XV DACHLBEEERAE S 15 A IR 2K

4 IMPACTHK HKU Sandy Bay Vikings IMPACTHKE B A B EEERKE Vikings
5 KPMG HK Scottish Nomads EEREBHEHAEIXENomads
6 Kroll USRC Tigers Titans Krol| =E 2R EIBEk G Titans
2023/2024 HKCR Men's Championship League 1 #&4158 775 SHHE1

Position HEZ Team [%{R

1 Shenzhen Pirates RFC YIS S B R B30

2 HKFC Natixis Scorpions Natixis& B EEKEScorpions

3 Typhoons/University RFC 1 FeR Bk S/ KB EEE 15X

4 Societe Generale Valley Mavericks R E B EE R ITERE IR E Mavericks
5 HKFC Natixis Select NatixisHiBEBEKESelect
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2023/2024 HKCR Women's Championship League 1 {8484 73 Bl E1

Position HE& Team [%{h

1 Sandy Bay Typhoons Storm I EHBIR = Typhoons Storm

2 Kroll USRC Tigers RFC 2 Krol| = F2Z SRS 2%

3 Gai Wu Fawkes ZEHIEIRE Fawkes

4 KPMG HK Scottish Kukris BEEHEBHSEABIRE Kukris
5 Societe Generale Valley Red B E R TEFNEERERed
2023/2024 HKCR Women's Championship {E# T FEEHE

Position HEZ Team (R

1 Societe Generale Valley Red A E R TEFIEERERed

2 Sandy Bay Typhoons Storm IEREIXE Typhoons Storm

3 Kroll USRC Tigers RFC 2 Krol| = &Z E 8RS 2%

4 KPMG HK Scottish Kukris EEREBHERAEIREKukris
5 Gai Wu Fawkes ZEHIEIRE Fawkes

6 HKFC Natixis Fire Natixis&H#H BIXZFire

7 Revolution Azure B Z iR E Azure

8 DAC Kowloon RFC 2 DACHEEISERAEE 2%

9 SCAA CWB x HKDS Griffins PR RINEIINIRE x FBCEMKRIEIKG Griffins
10 Police Sirens ERIBIKGSirens

2023/2024 HKCR Men's Championship League 2 {4858 7S SEAE2

Position HEZ Team (R

1 Kroll USRC Tigers Vandals Krol = E2ZFEEEkKE Vandals

2 Dynamic Care Taipo Dragon 1 Dynamic Care KIFFEISERE 1 X

3 HKFC Natixis Bulls Natixis&F B EIXEBulls

4 RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC RB-SRKX7KEIRESHIEIRE

5 KPMG Hong Kong Scottish Bravehearts BEERNEBHSMEAGEKEBravehearts

2023/2024 HKCR Women's Championship League 2 {844 7B HE4E2

Position HE& Team (R

1 Revolution Azure BEHZIREE IS Azure

2 SCAA CWB x HKDS Giriffins FETIMEENINE x FBCEMKEIKSGriffins
3 DAC Kowloon RFC 2 DACH.BEtEERAE S 2K

4 HKFC Natixis Fire Natixis&#& BEKEFire

5 Police Sirens ERIEIKE Sirens
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Natixis& & EEESequins
B2 IRE ST/ K BEIRE 2K
Krol| = EZZEIEIkE Twisters

BB CEAIRIEIRE

ZEHIIETk=Blaze

2023/2024 HKCR Men's Championship League 3 14858 7S SE4E3
Position HEZ Team [5{h

1 HKFC Natixis Sequins

2 Typhoons/ University RFC 2

3 Kroll USRC Tigers Twisters

4 Hong Kong Disciplined Services Rugby

5 SCAA CWB Marines

6 Gai Wu Blaze

7 DAC Kowloon Barbarians

DACH REIBEk4E = Barbarians

Position Hf& Team [x{R

1 Discovery Bay Pirates [LTE=g B=iali 28

2 IMPACTHK HKU Sandy Bay Marauders IMPACTHK & B X2V EZEEkEMarauders
3 DAC Kowloon Beavers DACHFEIEER4EE Beavers

4 Police RFC EREE

5 Societe Generale Valley Griffins-Maijais EE B RITERIBIRE Griffins-Maijais
6 Kroll USRC Tigers Old Goutonians Krol =EZ1ZFEEKEOld Goutonians
7 Revolution SRC B ikEEiEES

2023/2024 HKCR Community League 2A {&#84 [EH{E2A

Position HEZ Team [%{R

1 RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC 3B RB-SRKX7K[EIRESHIEIKE 3B

2 DAC Kowloon Brothers DACH.BEEEk4E = Brothers

3 RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC 3A RB-SRKX7KEIRESHIEIKE 3A

4 City RC Quakes IHIEERE Quakes

Position Hf& Team [x{R

1 KPMG Hong Kong Scottish Claymores EEREBEHIZEABIKE CClaymores

2 Typhoons/University RFC 3 ReEIBER S/ KRB 3K

3 Gai Wu Blossoms ZEHIEIREBlossoms

4 TAI PO DISTRICT Taipo Dragon 2 KiBEKIHEEBERE 2%

5 Police Panthers ERiBIkGPanthers
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Dynamic Care KIHFEISIkE
RB-SRKR 7K EIRESHIEINE
ESHEEREHMAEIKRESZ Kelpies
KEERE

IEIEIXE Typhoons Thunder

Ik Sparkles

2023/2024 HKCR Community League (12's) {548t EHHE(12 A EIK)
Position HE& Team (R

1 Dynamic Care Taipo Dragon RFC

2 RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC

3 KPMG HK Scottish SZ Kelpies

4 University RFC

5 Sandy Bay Typhoons Thunder

6 City RC Sparkles

7 Gai Wu Hawks

GRAND FINAL WINNERS
FHRORBBES

98

Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Hong Kong Men's Premiership
(FA & SEWITS FHBAREHEE)

Nan Fung Group | SEWIT Hong Kong Women's Premiership
(FAZEEE SEWITL FiBIREHE)

HKCR Premiership A (184858 7 BAREAEEA)

HKCR Men's Championship League 1 ({54858 72 EH;E1)
HKCR Women's Championship League 1 ({47 FEEHE1)
HKCR Men's Championship League 2 ({84 5BFrEEi4E2)

HKCR Women's Championship League 2 ({847 FdEHE2)

HKCR Men's Championship League 3 ({8458 FEEIHE3)

HKCR Community League 1 ({84811 [EE5ZE1)

HKCR Community League 2A ({842t [EE{ZEE2A)

HKCR Community League 2B ({483t [EH5Z52B)

HKCR Community League (12's) ({8421t EHEIER(12 ABEK)

HKCR ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

EERAMEIRE Hawks

HKFC Natixis Club (Natixis &8 EEKE)

Societe Generale Valley RFC (;ZHEZFEFIEIRE)

HKFC Natixis Dragons (Natixis& & Ik & Dragons)

Shenzhen Pirates RFC (iYI[;EHERUBEKELZEER)

HKU Sandy Bay Typhoons Storm (2 EEIkE Typhoons Storm)
HKFC Natixis Bulls (Natixis& & EEK=ZBulls)

SCAA CWB x HKDS Giriffins
(FEDRMEEIRE x HBLEIPKIEIKE Griffins)

HKFC Natixis Sequins (Natixis&#& EBIKE&Sequins)
DAC Kowloon Beavers (DACH BEIS k4= Beavers)
RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC 3B (RB-SRKX/KE|sESHIEIk = 3B)

KPMG Hong Kong Scottish Claymores
(EEREBHRISEABIXZ Claymores)

RB-SRK Tin Shui Wai RFC (RB-SRKX KB REsEiBERE)
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30th
April 2024.

Principal activity

The Group’s principal activity is the support, promotion and
development of rugby in Hong Kong.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive
income on page 107.

Funds

Movements in the funds of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 108.

Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$ Nil (2023: HK$ Nil).

102 HKCR ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

Directors
(a) Directors of the Company

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Mr C Brooke

Mr A Karton

Ms D Li (Resigned on 24th August 2023)
Mr R Lai

Mr R Esser

Mr M Murray

Mr D Scott

Mr O Stratton

Mr B Free (Appointed on 1st May 2023)
Ms G Meller (Appointed on 1st May 2023)
Mr O Lewsey (Appointed on 1st May 2023)
Ms K Boreham (Appointed on 24th August 2023)

In accordance with Article 12.5(b)(v) of the Articles of
Association, all directors retire and any eligible person
can hold office and may stand for re-election.

(b) Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr C
Brooke was also director of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Group's business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ interests in the shares and
debentures of the Company or any specified
undertaking of the Company

Atnotime duringthe yearwasthe Company orits subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to hold any interests in the shares or debentures
of the Company or its specified undertakings.

Business review

The Group has recorded a profit before fair value movements
on financial assets and taxation of HK$26.4 million (2023:
HK$65.4 million). Total comprehensive income for the year
was HK$31.7 million (2023: HK$58.9 million). The biggest
risk facing the Group remains its reliance on the annual Hong
Kong Sevens event to fund its principal activity which is the
promotion and development of rugby in Hong Kong. The
profit was the result of the Hong Kong Sevens tournaments
less operating expenses of the group.

There are no subsequent events which materially affect the
financial result of the Group.

The Group expects to operate on a sustainable basis in the
next financial year as it expects to continue to host the Hong
Kong Sevens and reinvest back into the promotion and
support of rugby in Hong Kong.

The Group has complied with all applicable laws and
regulations during the year.

The Group's success depends on some key relationships
for a significant proportion of its income, particularly those
relating to the Hong Kong Sevens and the governing body
for rugby, World Rugby.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - B4 # 3 52023/2024

Management contracts

No contracts concerningthe managementand administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, was there any permitted indemnity
provision in force for the benefit of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Christopher John Brooke
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2nd August 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Hong Kong, China Rugby (incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong, China
Rugby (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 106 to 137, comprise:

¢ the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
April 2024;

e the consolidated statement of total comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 April 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the report of the Directors, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2nd August 2024
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30™ APRIL 2024

Note
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5
Intangible assets 6
Right-of-use assets 8
Deferred tax asset 9
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10
Prepayments 11
Current assets
Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments 11
Amounts due from related parties 22
Cash and cash equivalents 12
Restricted cash 13
Current liabilities
Trade payables, other payables, accruals and contract liabilities 14
Lease liabilities 8
Amounts due to related parties 22
Net current assets
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 14
Lease liabilities 8

Net assets

Financed by:
General fund
Investment revaluation reserve fund

Christopher John Brooke Martin James Murray

Chairman Director

As approved on 2nd August 2024

The notes on pages 110 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
13,966 14,206
874 67
3,766 3,937
3,861 3,861
98,116 92,816
4,345 2,835
124,928 117,722
40,895 44,770
472 -
60,360 38,152
5,000 2,500
106,727 85,422
43,760 46,114
2,515 2,427

- 366
46,275 48,907
60,452 36,515
- 344

1,263 1,516
1,263 1,860
184,117 152,377
100,364 73,924
83,753 78,453
184,117 152,377




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - B4 ##$ &52023/2024

HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ APRIL 2024

Note 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$°000
Income
Sponsorship, Hospitality and Subscriptions 15 133,696 196,952
Ticket Sales 15 56,543 63,700
Investment Income 15 6,918 7,343
Subventions Received 15 - 150
Other Income 15 10,458 8,072
207,615 276,217
Expenses
Sevens Costs 16 (74,508) (119,396)
Staff Costs 17 (38,515) (33,965)
Club & Community 16 (24,343) (19,204)
Representative Squads Costs 16 (20,692) (19,404)
Operational, Administrative Expenses and Donations 16 (12,595) (12,174)
Depreciation & Amortisation 16 (2,150) (2,283)
Other Event Costs 16 (5,135) (789)
Facilities Management 16 (3,237) (3,634)
16 (181,175) (210,849)
Profit before fair value movements on financial assets and taxation 26,440 65,368
Fair value gains / (losses) on financial assets 10 5,300 (6,461)
Profit before taxation 31,740 58,907
Taxation 19 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 31,740 58,907
Attributable to:
General fund 26,440 65,368
Investment revaluation reserve fund 5,300 (6,461)
31,740 58,907

The notes on pages 110to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ APRIL 2024

Investment
revaluation
General reserve
fund fund Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1t May 2022 8,556 84,914 93,470
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 65,368 (6,461) 58,907
At 30* April 2023 73,924 78,453 152,377
At 1t May 2023 73,924 78,453 152,377
Total comprehensive income for the year 26,440 5,300 31,740
At 30t April 2024 100,364 83,753 184,117

The notes on pages 110to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ APRIL 2024

Note 2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 20 20,398 9,008

Net cash generated from operating activities 20,398 9,008

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 577 56
Dividends received from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 6,918 7,343
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,717) (925)
Net cash generated from investing activities 4,778 6,474

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal element of lease payments (2,938) (1,719)
Interest element of lease payments (30) (20)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,968) (1,739)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 22,208 13,743
Cash and cash equivalents at 1=t May 38,152 24,409
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 April 60,360 38,152

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 60,360 38,152

The notes on pages 110to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

General information

Hong Kong, China Rugby (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are engaged in the support,
promotion and development of rugby in Hong Kong.

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong on 30th April 1990 and is limited by guarantee. Permission has been granted
by the Companies Registrar for the Company to exclude the word “Limited” from its name.

The address of the Company's registered office is Room 2001, Olympic House, 1 Stadium Path, So Kon Po, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

On 1%t May 1990, the Company took over the assets, liabilities and reserve funds of its predecessor entity, Hong Kong Rugby
Football Union which was registered as a society.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 2" August 2024.

Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss). The consolidated financial statements are therefore prepared on a going concern
basis.

The Group has made profits of HK$31,740,000 in the year (2023: HK$58,907,000). The Hong Kong Seven'’s is the Group's core
revenue generating event. The Directors expect to host the tournament again the financial year 2024/25 but remain prudent
in their financial outlook. The Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are material to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

Management has represented certain immaterial 2023 balances within the consolidated statement of cash flow to conform
with the 2024 presentation.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) Amendments and improvements adopted in 2024

(ii)

In 2024, the Company adopted the following new standards and amendments which are relevant to its operations:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract and the Related Amendments

HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —

Comparative Information

The above new standards and amendments does not have any significant impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards, new interpretation and amendments that are not yet effective for the year ended 30th April 2024 and
have not been early adopted by the Company

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants!”
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback™

Revised Hong Kong Presentation of Financial Statements -
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Financial Statements Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause(1)
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements®?

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture®

(1) Effective for the company for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024
(2) Effective for the company for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2025
(3) Effective date to be determined

The adoption of the above new standards, new interpretation and amendments are not expected to have a material effect
on the financial statements of the Company.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NO

(b)

(c)

(d)
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TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to the
statement of financial position date on the basis set out in Note 2(c) below.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The Company controls an entity when the group is exposed
to, or has rights, to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Investments in subsidiary companies in the Company’s financial statements are stated at cost less provision for any impairment
losses. Income from subsidiary companies is accounted for on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Long term
loans to subsidiary companies are considered to be quasi-equity in nature where there are no defined repayment terms and
no expectation of repayment.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives set out below:

Leasehold buildings 25 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Artificial field 5 years
Facilities equipment 5 years
Other assets 3years

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(e)

()

(9)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

* itistechnically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

* management intends to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

e there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

e itcan be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product
are available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not
exceed three years.

Impairment of assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment
to be recognised is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;
e those to be measured at fair value through profit or loss, and
e those to be measured at amortised cost.

'

The classification depends on the Group's determination of the classification of a financial asset between ‘debt’ and ‘equity
inline with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

For investments in equity instruments (as defined by HKAS 32) that are not held for trading, they will be treated as fair value
through profit or loss unless the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NO

(9)

(h)

(J)

(k)
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TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

For investments in debt instruments (as defined by HKAS 32) these will be treated as fair value through profit or loss unless
they meet both of the following conditions:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If the above two conditions are met, movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the income statement.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity
to the income statement and recognised in other gains or losses.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value. The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the income statement following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in the income statement
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments

Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments are recognised at fair value less provision for impairment. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the group.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Cash

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted cash”. Restricted cash is excluded from cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of lease payments to be paid in the future, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include payments for non-lease components. Subsequently, lease liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Remeasurements of the lease liabilities are required in case
of changes in the lease term, in future lease payments or when options are reassessed.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(k)

n

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset are initially measured at the present value of the corresponding lease liability adjusted by payments made
before lease commencement and any lease incentives received. Subsequently the assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease term and are adjusted by remeasurements of the corresponding lease liability. An impairment test is
performed whenever impairment indicators are identified.

The incremental borrowing rate is based on publicly available market data in Hong Kong.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred taxation is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

(m) Provisions

(n)

(o)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made.

Trade payables, other payables, accruals and contract liabilites

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Contract liabilities is recognised when cash is recovered from customers before satisfying any of the associated performance
obligations.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of tickets, member subscriptions and sponsorship is recognised when the performance obligation (the
taking place of the event to which the revenue is associated and if required costs have been incurred) has been satisfied.

Coaching course income, and other income is recognised when the performance obligation has taken place and the service
has been delivered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Capital grants are recognised over the life of the asset to which the grant was awarded.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Subventions and Grants

(1)

(2)

Subventions
Subventions from the government and sporting governing bodies are recognised at their fair value where there is a

reasonable assurance that the subventions will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

These subventions are recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Subventions are presented in the consolidated income statement as
deductions against the related expenses. General subventions where there are no specific expenditure requirements are
presented separately within “other income”.

Grants

Grants provided by organisations that are not associated with the government or sporting governing bodies are recognised
at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the subventions will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

These grants are recognised in the consolidated income statement and are presented in the consolidated income statement
as income, with the associated expenses presented within expenses.

(q) Foreign currency translation

(1

(2)

(3)

116

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company'’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which hasthe currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statements of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statements of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statements are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme, the INVESCO Strategic Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme. The assets of this scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund. The pension plan is
funded by payments from employees and by the Group and provides benefits linked to the contribution and investment
returns made on the plan. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Contributions to this defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement in
the year in which they are incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to full vesting of their contributions.

(2) Employee leave entitlement

Provisions are made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave entitlements as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies, where the individual or company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

Reserves

The Group holds two categories of reserves in order to make it clear to the users of the financial statements the difference
in the value of cumulative gains/ losses associated with normal trading activities, and the value of cumulative gains/ losses
generated as a result of investments in financial assets. The two categories are as follows:

General fund - contains the cumulative gains/ losses of the Group, including taxation, but excluding fair value gains/ losses on
financial assets.

Investment revaluation reserve fund - contains the cumulative gains/ losses associated with current and previously held
investments in financial assets. The fund is unrestricted. The gains/ losses on these investments are not transferred to the
general fund when they are sold.
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and price risks),

credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance as a result of these risk

(1) Market risk

118

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk as a result of its holding of investments denominated in US
dollars. Since the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar within a range of HK$7.75-7.85: US$1, the Group
does not consider the foreign exchange risk to be significant and therefore no further measures are taken to
reduce this risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because investments held by the Group are disclosed on the
consolidated statement of financial position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The funds are
managed by an Investment Committee who have a mandate to maintain and if possible enhance the principal
investment value of the portfolios whilst keeping risks to an acceptable minimum. The Committee reports to the
Board of Directors and meets with its Fund managers on a quarterly basis.

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the investment unit prices on the Group's
portfolios and on profit and loss account. The analysis is based on the assumption that the unit price increases/
decreases by the respective percentages indicated below with all other variables held constant.

2024 2023
Change Impact Change Impact
in market on in market on
Investments value profit or loss value profit or loss
of units HKS$ (+/-) of units HKS$ (+/-)
% (+/-) ‘000 % (+/-) ‘000
Global Equity High Income Fund 10% 9,812 10% 9,282

The Group has used its view of what would be a reasonable shift in each key investment unit price to estimate the
change for use in the market sensitivity analysis above. The disclosures are shown in absolute terms, changes and
impacts could be positive or negative. Changes in % movement in unit values are revised annually depending
on the Group's current view of market volatility and other relevant factors.

The Group has interest-bearing assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits.

As the Group has no long-term borrowings or loans, the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The risks in relation to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
are therefore not deemed to be significant.
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(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk factors and management (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(2)

(3)

Credit risk

Credit risks arise from cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and outstanding
receivable balances at the year end.

The Group minimises its credit risk in relation to receivables through the sale of tickets and merchandise to a widely
dispersed customer base. Any exposure to individual organisations will be through significant sponsorship deals with
reputable organisations.

For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of ‘A’ are accepted. For
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the risk is managed through the use of reputable fund managers and
by the Investment Committee.

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash to meet the commitments and obligations of the
Group.

The Group had net current assets of HK$60,452,000 (2023: HK$36,515,000) as at 30 April 2024. The Group's material
cash requirements include:

e Trade payables, other payables and accruals
e Lease liabilities

e  Otherfinancial commitments disclosed in Note 21

Liabilities are trade, other payables and accruals as well as contract liaibilies. Current liabilities are all due within 12
months of the balance sheet date. Lease liabilities fall due in line with the length of the lease. The fair values of the
balances due are equal to their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not material.

The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$‘000
At 30t April 2024
Trade payables, other payables 43,760 - - -
and accruals
Lease liabilities 2,515 1,263 - -
At 30* April 2023
Trade payables, other payables 46,114 344 - -
and accruals
Lease liabilities 2,427 1,516 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk factors and management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(4) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to be commercially and financially sound, able to provide the financial
resources necessary to achieve the Strategic Plan and to safeguard the Group's activities into the future. Capital of the
Group is considered to be the General fund and Investment revaluation reserve fund.

The group has taken measures to manage the capital risk for the foreseeable future. The financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss provide sufficient capital for the Group to meet its future liabilities for the foreseeable future even
in the event of a financial loss in the next financial year.

(5) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There is no material offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement and similar agreements during the year.

(b) Fair value estimation
e Level 1-Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2 -Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices);

e Level 3-Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 30t April 2024.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
Assets
- Liquid Equity Funds 98,116 - - 98,116
Total assets 98,116 - - 98,116

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 30t April 2023.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
Assets
- Liquid Equity Funds 92,816 - - 92,816
Total assets 92,816 - - 92,816
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will by definition
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life. The estimated
useful life reflects management'’s best estimate of the period that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the property, plant and equipment. To the extent the useful economic useful life changes the resultant depreciation
in the consolidated income statement will be increased or decreased.

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-forward tax losses

The deferred tax assets include an amount of HK$3,861,000 which relates to carried-forward tax losses of the Group. The
Group incurred the losses during the Covid-19 Pandemic. The Group has further unrecognised tax losses generated during
the Covid-19 period, but considers the portion of deferred tax asset recognised is the appropriate level that is recoverable
using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business plans and budgets for the Group. The Group has
generated taxable income in 2023/2024. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - B4 ##$ &52023/2024

HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Leasehold Office
buildings improvements equipment
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
At 1t May 2022
Cost 17,459 33,112 20,950
Accumulated depreciation (4,953) (32,655) (19,489)
Net book amount 12,506 457 1,461
Year ended 30t April 2023
Opening net book amount 12,506 457 1,461
Additions - 57 680
Depreciation (719) (244) (807)
Closing net book amount 11,787 270 1,334
At 30* April 2023
Cost 17,459 33,169 21,630
Accumulated depreciation (5,672) (32,899) (20,296)
Net book amount 11,787 270 1,334
Year ended 30* April 2024
Opening net book amount 11,787 270 1,334
Additions - - 1,267
Depreciation (719) (83) (809)
Closing net book amount 11,068 187 1,792
At 30t April 2024
Cost 17,459 33,169 22,897
Accumulated depreciation (6,391) (32,982) (21,105)
Net book amount 11,068 187 1,792
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Furniture Coaching Motor

and fittings equipment Pitches vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
2,935 4,875 75,546 154,877
(2,903) (4,853) (74,710) (139,563)
32 22 836 - 15,314
32 22 836 15,314
54 134 - 925

(21) (27) (215) (2,033)
65 129 621 - 14,206
2,989 5,009 75,546 155,802
(2,924) (4,880) (74,925) (141,596)
65 129 621 - 14,206
65 129 621 - 14,206
51 - 58 309 1,685
(40) (50) (138) (86) (1,925)
76 79 541 223 13,966
3,040 5,009 75,604 309 157,487
(2,964) (4,930) (75,063) (86) (143,521)
76 79 541 223 13,966
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6

124

Intangible assets

Year ended 30* April 2023
Opening net book amount
Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount
At 30* April 2023

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 30t April 2024
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 30* April 2024
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Subsidiaries

The Company's subsidiary information is as follows:

Place of
incorporation and

Name type of legal entity

REAL Sports and

Entertainment liability company

Limited

HKCR ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

Hong Kong, limited

Principal activities and

place of operation

Management of rugby

events

Computer software

Particulars of
issued share

capital

2 ordinary

shares

HK$000

317
(250)

67
4,036
(3.969)
67

67
1,032
(225)

874

5,068
(4,194)

874

Group
interest

held

100%
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 Right-of-Use assets and Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2024 2023
HK$000 HK$°000

Right-of-use assets
Buildings 2,761 3,682
Others 1,005 255
3,766 3,937

Lease liabilities

Current 2,515 2,427
Non-current 1,263 1,516
3,778 3,943

There is HK$1,212,000 additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 30 April 2024 (2023: HK$2,582,000).

There is HK$1,562,000 increase to the right-of-use assets as a result of modifications to certain lease agreements (2023:
HK$ Nil).

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of total comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$°000
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Buildings 2,482 1,307
Others 462 418
2,944 1,725
Interest expense 30 20

The total cash outflow for leases in 2024 was HK$2,968,000 (2023: HK$1,739,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8

(iii)

(iv)

Right-of-Use assets and Leases (Continued)

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and government properties. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5
years, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Deferred tax asset
The balance comprises temporary difference attributable to:

2024 2023
HK$000 HK$°000
Tax losses recognised 3,861 3,861
Total deferred tax asset 3,861 3,861
Tax losses
HK$000

Movements
At 1 May 2023 3,861
Utilisation (2,692)
Tax lossed recognised 2,692
At 30 April 2024 3,861

The Group has remaining tax losses of HK$234,767,000 representing a potential deferred tax asset of HK$38,736,000 which
has not been recognised due to uncertainty surrounding the extent and timing of future taxable profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2024 2023
HK$000 HK$’000
Investments at fair value 98,116 92,816

The movement in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss may be summarised as follows:

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

As at 1t May of the previous year 92,816 99,277
Net unrealised gains / (losses) 5,300 (6,461)
As at 30* April 98,116 92,816

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss relate to actively managed and traded unit trust investments measured at
fair value. The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following currency:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$°000
United States dollars 98,116 92,816
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments

Trade receivables

Trade receivables - net
Other receivables and prepayments

Less non-current portion: prepayments

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
10,505 13,448
10,505 13,448
34,735 34,157
45,240 47,605
(4,345) (2,835)
40,895 44,770

All trade receivables and other receivables are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date unless stated

otherwise.

The fair values of these balances approximate their carrying amounts.

As of 30" April 2024, trade receivables of HK$10,505,000 (2023: HK$13,448,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. Based on the associated credit
ratings and history of limited defaults, the Group expects any associated expected credit loss to be minimal. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables as at 30* April is as follows:

Up to 30 days overdue
Over 30 days overdue

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
4,508 4,702
5,997 8,746
10,505 13,448

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
United States dollars
Pounds sterling
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HK$'000 HK$'000
38,575 42,379
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash at bank and in hand 50,128 38,152
Short term bank deposits 10,232 -
60,360 38,152

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong dollars 49,280 33,414
United States dollars 974 54
Pounds sterling 10,106 4,684
60,360 38,152

13 Restricted cash

Restricted cash represents HK$5,000,000 required by the Group's principal bankers as security for a guarantee in respect of
the hire of Hong Kong Stadium.

14 Trade payables, other payables, accruals and contract liabilities

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade payables 10,549 9,350
Other payables and accruals 24,602 26,472
Contract Liabilities 8,609 10,636
43,760 46,458

Less non-current portion: other payables - (344)
43,760 46,114

Current liabilities are all due within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

In addition to current liabilities, the Group also has non-current liabilities of HK$NIl (2023: HK$344,000) relating to capital
grants not yet recognised.

Contract liabilities primarily represents funds that have been received in advance which are associated with a future Hong
Kong Sevens tournament which will be recognised as income when the associated performance obligations of the Group
have been met.

Contract liabilities of HK$10,292,000 (2023: HK$46,923,000) was recognised as income during the year that was included in
such balance at the beginning of the year.
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15 Income

Revenue primarily comprises subscriptions from members, sponsorship income, and ticket sales.

Income
Sponsorship, Hospitality and Subscriptions
Tickets Sales
Investment Income
Subventions Received

Other income
Facilities Management Income
Course Income
Hong Kong Touch Association - Registration / Entry Fee
Capital Grant Recognition
Employment Scheme Subsidy
Miscellaneous

Total Income
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2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
133,696 196,952
56,543 63,700
6,918 7,343

- 150
197,157 268,145
2,335 1,791
1,531 1,007
1,082 472
343 343

- 2,300

5,167 2,159
10,458 8,072
207,615 276,217
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16 Expenses by nature

(a)

2024 2023
Note HK$°000 HK$°000

Expenses
Sevens Costs 16(a) 74,508 119,396
Staff Costs 17 38,515 33,965
Club & Community 16(b) 24,343 19,204
Representative Squads Costs 16(c) 20,692 19,404
Operational, Administrative Expenses and Donations 12,595 12,174
Depreciation and Amortisation 2,150 2,283
Other Event Costs 5,135 789
Facilities Management 3,237 3,634
Total expenses 181,175 210,849

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) was HK$2,944,000 (2023: HK$1,725,000). This amount is included within
Operational, Administrative Expenses and Donations.

Operational, Administrative Expenses and Donations include auditor’s remuneration of HK$683,800 (2023: HK$789,200),
which includes both audit fees of HK$343,700 (2023: HK$333,800) and non-audit fees of HK$340,100 (2023: HK$455,400),
and lease interest HK$30,000 (2023: HK$20,000).

Subventions from government and sporting governing bodies totaling HK$21,576,000 (2023: HK$15,933,000) have been
deducted against the expenses that they were intended to compensate during the year ended 30 April 2024.

Sevens Costs

2024 2023

HK$000 HK$°000

Hong Kong Stadium Costs 32,106 37,772
Accommodation & meals 8,485 32,565
Displays / Entertainment 7,639 8,855
Travel 5,285 10,401
PR and advertising 5,009 6,549
Printing, ticketing, accreditation and office expenses 2,751 3,937
Meals and refreshments 2,400 3,204
Function Costs 2,163 4,359
Temporary staff Costs 1,963 3,322
Insurance 1,672 2,525
Kit and laundry expenses 1,345 1,540
Consumables 1,236 1,415
Programme & merchandise Costs 354 543
Medical and physiotherapy 207 936
Miscellaneous 1,893 1,473
74,508 119,396
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16 Expenses by nature (Continued)
(b) Club & Community

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$’000
Subventions to clubs 4,220 3,300
Hire of grounds 4,871 4,700
Community coaching expenses 5,472 3,771
Streaming, video, marketing 3,308 1,838
Kit and laundry expenses 1,226 1,332
Referees expenses 770 610
Professional fees and Insurance 1,678 1,276
Trophies and presentation 196 322
Medical and physiotherapy 426 288
Consumables 862 908
Miscellaneous 1,314 859
24,343 19,204

(c) Representative Squads Costs
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$°000
Allowances 9,017 8,785
Insurance 4,450 3,329
Kit and laundry expenses 3,493 2,257
Travel 33 269
Meals and refreshments 1,061 871
Medical and physiotherapy 651 1,627
Accommodation & meals 362 1,474
Hardware/Software 680 479
Miscellaneous 945 313
20,692 19,404

17 Staff costs

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
Wages and salaries 33,664 29,464
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme 1,349 1,277
Others 3,502 3,224
38,515 33,965

None of the directors received or will receive any fees or emoluments in respect of services provided to the Group during the
year (2023: HK$ Nil).

Staff costs do not include staff employed specifically to play rugby for the representative teams. The costs for these staff are
included in allowances in Note 16 (c).
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18 Benefits and interest of directors

19
(a)

The following disclosures are made pursuant to section 383(1)(a) to (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
and Parts 2 to 4 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (equivalent to key management compensation)

None of the directors received or will receive any fees or other emoluments in respect of their services rendered to the
Company during the year (2023: HK$ Nil).

Directors' retirement benefits and termination benefits

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services were paid
or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2023: HK$ Nil). No consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available directors’ services (2023: HK$ Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay any consideration to any third party for making available directors’ services for the year
ended 30* April 2024 (2023: HK$ Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the directors, bodies corporate controlled by or
entities connected with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made available in favour of the directors of the Company, or bodies
corporate controlled by or entities connected with such directors subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year 30 April 2024 (2023: HK$ Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year 30™ April 2024 (2023: HK$ Nil).

Taxation

Income tax expense

Current income tax
Deferred income tax

Total income tax expense

2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
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19 Taxation (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of income tax expense

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate
of Hong Kong, the home jurisdiction of the Group, as follows:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$°000
Profit before fair value movements on financial assets and taxation 26,440 65,368
Tax at the Hong Kong rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 4,363 10,786
Income not subject to tax (1,236) (1,221)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised (435) 213
Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses - (9,778)
Tax Loss recognised (2,692) -
Tax expense - -
20 Note to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of deficit for the year to net cash from operating activities:
2024 2023
HK$000 HK$°000
Profit before fair value movements on financial assets and taxation 26,440 65,368
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 5) 1,925 2,033
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) 2,944 1,725
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 6) 225 250
Interest income (577) (56)
Interest expense (Note 8) 30 20
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (6,918) (7,343)
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,069 61,997
Increase in amounts due from related parties (472) -
Decrease in amounts due to related parties (366) (5,083)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments 2,365 (25,313)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables and accruals (2,698) (20,093)
Increase in restricted cash (2,500) (2,500)
Cash generated from operating activities 20,398 9,008
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21 Commitments

(a)

(b)

22
(a)

(b)

(c)

Lease commitments

The Group had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follow:

2024 2023

HK$000 HK$000

Not later than 1 year 6,778 6,566
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,263 1,143
8,041 7,709

Capital commitments
No capital commitments have been contracted for as of 30th April 2024 (2023: HK$ Nil).

Related parties

Significant transactions with related parties

During the year, the Group undertook the following transactions with related parties in the normal course of its business:

2024 023
HK$°000 HK$'000

Income
Subscriptions fee from members - Rugby Union Club 37,200 54,026
Staff cost recharge to Rugby For Good 4,052 2,682

Related party transactions are based upon mutually agreed terms and conditions as agreed between the transacting parties.

Balances with group companies and related parties

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and payable or receivable on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their

fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts due from/ (to) Rugby For Good 472 (366)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 6,687 5,547

Post-employment benefits 108 90

6,795 5,637
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of the Company

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Deferred tax asset
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Prepayments

Current assets
Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Total Assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the company
General fund

Revaluation reserve

Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities
Amounts due to related parties

Non-current liabilities
Other payables
Lease Liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
13,966 14,206
874 67
3,766 3,937
3,861 3,861
98,116 92,816
4,345 2,835
124,928 117,722
40,883 44,761
472 -
60,199 37,857
5,000 2,500
106,554 85,118
231,482 202,840
100,253 73,717
83,753 78,453
184,006 152,170
43,698 46,017
2,515 2,427

- 366

46,213 48,810

- 344

1,263 1,516
47,476 50,670
231,482 202,840
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HONG KONG, CHINA RUGBY

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

Note

Reserve movement of the Company

General Revaluation

fund reserve Total

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1%t May 2022 8,267 84,914 93,181
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 65,450 (6,461) 58,989
At 30" April 2023 73,717 78,453 152,170
At 1%t May 2023 73,717 78,453 152,170
Total comprehensive profit for the year 26,536 5,300 31,836
At 30" April 2024 100,253 83,753 184,006

24 Approval of financial statements

The consolidated and company financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 2" August 2024.
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